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ANNUAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Reference is made to the announcement of China Shenghai Group Limited (the “Company”)
dated 31 March 2022, in relation to the unaudited annual results for the year ended 31 December
2021 of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) (the “Unaudited Annual Results
Announcement”). Terms used herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
Unaudited Annual Results Announcement unless the context requires otherwise.

AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS

The Board is pleased to announce that on 31 May 2022, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited (“McMillan Woods”), the auditors of the Company, has completed its audit of the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The audited annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the full text of the annual report enclosed
hereto.

MATERIAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN UNAUDITED AND AUDITED ANNUAL
RESULTS

Since the financial information contained in the Unaudited Annual Results Announcement was
neither audited nor agreed with McMillan Woods as at the date of its publication and subsequent
adjustments have been made to such information, shareholders and potential investors of the
Company are advised to pay attention to certain differences between the financial information of
the unaudited and audited annual results of the Group. Set forth below are principal details and
reasons for the material differences in such financial information.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi)

Note

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and other (losses)/gains, net
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Expected credit losses on financial assets i
Finance costs

Other expenses i1

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax
Items that may be reclassitied
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
— the owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to:
— the owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

Loss per share — Basic and Diluted
(RMB)

Audited Unaudited Difference
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
86,506 86,506 -
(76,587) (76,587) -
9919 9,919 -
(3,483) (3,483) _
(31,380) (31,380) -
(35,750) (35,750) -
(27,158) (10,000) (17,158)
(1,558) (1,558) -
(6,911) (3,938) (2,973)
(96,321) (76,190) (20,131)
(1,347) (1,347) _
(97,668) (77,537) (20,131)
567 535 32
(97,101) (77,002) (20,099)
(97,446) (77,315) (20,131)
(222) (222) -
(97,668) (77,537) (20,131)
(96,892) (76,793) (20,099)
(209) (209) -
(97,101) (77,002) (20,099)
(0.9649) (0.7656) (0.1993)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Rental deposits

Deposits paid to suppliers
Prepayments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Deposits paid to suppliers

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Accruals, deposits received and
other payables

Debentures

Lease liabilities

Provision for taxation

Note

il

iii

I, i1

a%

iii, 1v

Audited Unaudited Difference
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000
30,999 33,996 (2,997)
468 100 368
4,922 5,429 (507)
3,500 3,500 -
39,889 43,025 (3,136)
61,737 61,737 -
115,623 131,266 (15,643)
2,857 2,838 19
9,472 11,039 (1,567)
176,402 176,402 -
366,091 383,282 (17,191)
2,482 2,482 _
17,262 17,466 (204)
6,213 6,213 -
1,805 1,421 384
3,423 3,423 _
31,185 31,005 180




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
(Expressed in Renminbi)

Audited Unaudited Difference
Note RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Net current assets 334,906 352,277 (17,371)
Total assets less current liabilities 374,795 395,302 (20,507)
Non-current liabilities
Debentures 14,990 14,990 -
Lease liabilities 111, Iv 813 1,221 (408)
15,803 16,211 (408)
Net assets 358,992 379,091 (20,099)
CAPITAL AND RESERVE
Share capital 9,388 9,388 -
Reserves 349,813 369,912 (20,099)
359,201 379,300 (20,099)
Non-controlling interests (209) (209) -
Total equity 358,992 379,091 (20,099)
Note:
1. Adjustment for expected credit losses on financial assets.
ii. Adjustment for impairment of right-of-use assets.
iii.  Reallocation of non-current portion.
iv. Reallocation of other payables and lease liabilities.

Save as disclosed in this announcement and the corresponding adjustments in total, percentages,
ratios and comparative figures related to the above material differences, all other information

contained in the Unaudited Annual Results Announcement had no material changes.



THE AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW AND REVIEW OF RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
BY MCMILLAN WOODS

The audited annual results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position and the related notes thereto
for the year ended 31 December 2021 as set out in this announcement have been agreed by
McMillan Woods, to the amounts set out in the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such work performed by McMillan Woods in this
respect did not constitute an assurance engagement in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review Engagements or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance
Engagements issued by the HKICPA and consequently no assurance has been expressed by
McMillan Woods on the Unaudited Annual Results Announcement or this announcement.

On behalf of the Board of
China Shenghai Group Limited
Li Dongfan
Executive Director

Xiamen, the People’s Republic of China, 17 June 2022

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of the Company are Mr. Li Dongtan,
Mr. Liu Rongru and Ms. Chen Xiaoling and the independent non-executive directors of the
Company are Mr. Liu Dajin, Mr. Liu Junting and Mr. He Jian.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Shenghai Group
Limited (the “"Company” or “Shenghai”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | report to shareholders our annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year 2021" or
the “Reporting Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

With sporadic COVID-19 outbreak, uncertainties of the economic
outlook as well as intensifying competition of domestic snack market,
the sales of the food products the Group offers continued to shrink
during the Reporting Year. Further, with a slow inventory turnover
rate, customers of the Group have reduced the orders even though
the Group has attempted to enhance its marketing effort on the
supermarkets and adopted a flexible pricing strategy. The Group's
revenue from food business decreased by approximately 46.0% from
approximately RMB155.6 million for 2020 to approximately RMB84.1
million during the Reporting Period, and gross profit from this
segment fell 68.3% from RMB23.6 million in 2020 to RMB75 million
during the Reporting Year.

When the COVID-19 pandemic sparked off, economic activities and
global supply chain were largely disrupted, fast moving consumer
good business of the Group had achieved a swift growth. As the
international supply chain continued to improve and the strong
spending following the apex of COVID-19 lockdown gradually
cooled down in the second half of the Reporting Year, the orders
for the Group's procurement services has slowed down. During the
Reporting Year, gross profit from the Group's fast moving consumer
goods business decreased to RMB2.5 million from RMB7.2 million
in 2020.

OUTLOOK

Mr. Li Kegiang, Premier of the Central Government has set China's
2022 GDP growth at 4.5%. The goal is generally considered
reasonable. As the geopolitical tension arisen from Russian-
Ukraine continues to advance, China’s economy is considered to
be relatively stable. However, consumer spending is potentially
to be further crippled by the triple pressure — shrinking spending,
supply shock and weakening expectation. Fluctuation in property
markets and policy reforms in certain industries such as internet
and education have significantly impacted to the employment rate
and income of the middle class. What is more is that Omicron has
caused a relatively extensive outbreak since 2021. Major cities
such as Shanghai and Shenzhen have implemented temporarily
stringent control of the spread. The dried seafood, algae and fungi,
and seafood snacks that the Group offers targets mid-to-high-end
customers, weakened consumer confidence is expected to pose
extensive impact on the sales of the Group's food business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREEE

With the weakening consumer confidence, the improving global
supply chain and the government’s strategic focus on the domestic
demand (economic dual circulation), the Group maintains a
cautiously optimistic view on its low-cost fast moving consumer
good business. To optimize its capacity on supply chain related
services, the Company has entered into an agreement to form a
JV company which is owned 55% to the Company and 45% to
CS Business Solutions on 16 March 2022. With a total registered
capital of HK$10 million, the new JV will be engaged in the
operation of B2B trading platform of high-demand mobile phones
and electronic components and B2B supply chain financing
business.

The Group will continue to keep abreast of the market conditions
and identify opportunities to further diversify its sources of income,
so as to stabilize the financial performance of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to all the staff. | would also like to extend my gratitude to
our shareholders, investors, long-term customers and suppliers for
their continual devotion and consistent support. We will continue
to adhere to our initial vision and uphold the pragmatic operation
and positive approach to achieve development and actual results to
reward the trust from all of you.

China Shenghai Group Limited
Li Dongfan
Joint-Chairman and Executive Director

17 June 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongru (2/4140) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 54, is our Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Director and the Joint-chairman of our
Board and is primarily responsible for development, positioning
and strategy planning of our Group. Mr. Liu is the founder of
our Group. He was appointed as a Director and Chief Executive
Officer on 8 January 2016 and 6 August 2019 respectively, and
redesignated as an Executive Director and Joint-chairman on
11 April 2016 and 14 January 2020 respectively. He is currently a
director of all subsidiaries of our Group. He is also a member of
our Remuneration Committee and the chairman of our Nomination
Committee.

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Liu worked at Xiamen
Shipping Trading Limited (EPIA&EEME AR A7) in China from
August 1990 to August 1996, a company principally engaged in
shipping and trading, where he was primarily responsible for ship
steering and piloting. In October 1996, Mr. Liu started his own
business in trading marine product where he was primarily in
charge of the general operation of the business which allowed
him to input his trading experience into Xiamen Wofan upon its
establishment in July 2005.

Mr. Liu attended a course entitled “Contemporary CEOs’ Advance
Course (BBARDELHESHAMIEI) " from October 2010 to
October 2011 at the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua
University (JEZE KB B S5 2 ) . Mr. Liu has been appointed
a member of the 7th Chinese People’'s Political Consultative
Conference at Xiamen Huli district (EFITMHERE BRI E
8 ) since November 2011 and a member of the China Democratic
National Construction Association (FE R TZBE &2 8) since
November 2010. Mr. Liu had also been appointed the first vice
president of the Association for New Social Stratum of Xiamen
Huli district (EfI R sEfOTteRBREALHEZIER)
in December 2009, the executive committee of the 12th Xiamen
Federation of Commerce of Chamber (EFf9™H Ll (AR <)E
+—EHZEEHZ)in December 2011, the standing committee
member of the 5th Xiamen Huli district Federation of Commerce
of Chamber (EFIT R IHE (M) FLEESERHKES)
in April 2012 and the supervisor of the third division of the Xiamen
Municipal Bureau of Quality and Technical Supervision ([ EFfiTE &
RWMEBRE=S2RTRAEEE) in April 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESER

Mr. Li Dongfan (ZZ% A,) (“Mr. Li"), aged 37 He was appointed
as our non-executive director and Joint-Chairman on 14 January
2020. He is primarily responsible to provide advice on the Group's
business development, management and strategic planning. Mr. Li
is an entrepreneur and he held a degree of Doctor of Philosophy
(Finance) granted by Brampton International University, Canada.
From November 2017 to July 2018, Mr. Li held various positions
of vice chairman, executive director and the joint-chairman of
the board of directors of Blockchain Group Company Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock
Exchange"”) (Stock Code: 364). From April 2018 to August 2018,
Mr. Li served as the executive director and chairman of Moody
Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1400).

Ms. Chen Xiaoling (“Ms. Chen”), aged 38. Ms. Chen graduated
from Sichuan University with a Degree of Business Management
(Major in internet education). Prior to her joining to the Company,
Ms. Chen was the Director of Business Development of J#JIITE
SR BEREAR AT (Shenzhen Juxiang Technology Development
Co., Ltd.) and she has more than 8 years of experience in
electronic commerce.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Dajin (2/K# ), aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June 2017 Mr. Liu
Dajin is also a member of our Audit Committee, our Remuneration
Committee and our Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu Dajin has
been a practising member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since November 1996. Mr. Liu Dajin graduated
with a bachelor degree in economics (major in accounting) from
the Central University of Finance and Economics (F1 R EBF & A £2)
(originally named Central Institute of Finance and Banking (F4k
BB E R ERT)) in June 1989. He then obtained a postgraduate
qualification from the Xiamen University Postgraduate School in
September 1992. Mr. Liu Dajin worked as a teaching assistant at
the Jimei Finance and Economics School ( £ X4 (currently
known as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University ££3 X
BB BB ) ) from August 1984 to August 1987 Mr. Liu Dajin then
served as the deputy director and an instructor at the Financial
Management Teaching and Research Centre (&I =) at
the Jimei College of Finance (S EH B EHEEIEZR (currently known
as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University & 3< A 2284
BT ) ) from July 1989 to August 1995. Mr. Liu Dajin worked
in various faculties of the Jimei University (£33 K &) since
September 1995 and is currently the professor of the Faculty of
Management of the Chengyi University College, Jimei University
(EEKREHHFER) . Mr. Liu Dajin is currently the independent
non-executive director of Mobile Internet (China) Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1439), Xiamen Xindeco Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000701.SZ) and Xiamen Zongheng Group
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Liu Junting (2/£ %) (“Mr. Liu Junting”), aged 32, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 14 January
2020. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu
Junting graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in July
2013. Mr. Liu Junting is currently the assistant manager of Zhuhai
Lvzhou Industrial Limited. Since October 2019, Mr. Liu Junting
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Moody
Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1400).

Mr. He Jian (“Mr. He"), aged 34, graduated from South China
University of Technology in 2009. From 2010 to 2020, Mr. He
worked as managerial positions in various enterprises engaged
in civil engineering, food processing and cultivation. Mr. He is
currently the General Manager of M EEZMNBEEEER L A
(Zhuhai Shijian Intercontinental Industrial Co., Ltd.).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED T

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Shenghai Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce
the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Year”), together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group sells dried seafood, algae and fungi, and seafood snacks
in the PRC. The Group (i) sources high quality raw and processed
raw materials, (ii) sub-contracts processing of the unprocessed
raw materials to third parties, (i) packages products at its own
packaging facilities or through its sub-contractors, and (iv) sells
packaged products under its own brand “Wofan (JKZ) " The
Group also sells dried seafood, algae and fungi without packaging.
The Group also engaged in the sales of fast moving consumer
goods since early 2020.

Sporadic outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
throughout 2021 alongside other uncertainties such as fluctuation
of the property markets and reduced of local government spending
have negatively affected the consumer confidence over the past
year. The shrinking demand has significantly impacted on both
turnover and the gross profit margin of the Group. During the
Reporting Year, the Group's revenue fell by approximately 46.8%
to approximately RMB86.5 million from approximately RMB162.7
million for 2020. Gross profit for the Reporting Year drastically fell
by 67.8% to approximately RMB9.9 million (2020: approximately
RMB30.7 million) while gross profit margin fell to 11.5% (2020:
18.9%). As the results of the sharp declines of the revenue
and gross profit margin, in addition, due to the impact of the
epidemic, the overall collection of receivables from customers
has deteriorated, and the Group needs to make a provision of
expected credit loss of approximately RMB29.2 million for its
trade receivables, the Group continued to recorded a loss of
approximately RMB97.7 million (2020: loss of RMB32.3 million).

FOOD BUSINESS

The Group has a comprehensive product portfolio with different
raw materials, flavoring and packaging and considers each product
to be distinctive. The Group seeks to differentiate itself from its
competitors by providing a broad and convenient choice of safe and
quality products, which creates additional opportunities to drive the
overall sales. During the Reporting Period, the Group offered over
100 types of dried seafood, 30 types of algae and fungi, and 60
types of seafood snacks.

The Group's products are sold through supermarkets, trading
companies, convenience stores and other sales channels, such as
food companies, gift stores and e-commerce retailers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

The Group has seen continuous decline of demand for its food
products over the past year. Sporadic outbreak of COVID-19,
adverse weather in certain cities as well as uncertainties of
economic outlook have curb the consumer confidence in particular
in the second half of 2021. Despite enhanced marketing efforts
in supermarkets, increasing competition in the snack market and
slow inventory turnover led to worsening sales performance of
the Group. The Group's revenue from food business decreased
by approximately 46.0% from approximately RMB155.6 million
for 2020 to approximately RMB84.1 million during the Reporting
Year, and gross profit from this segment fell 68.2% from RMB23.6
million during 2020 to RMB7.5 million during the Reporting Year.

FAST MOVING CONSUMER GOODS AND OTHER BUSINESS
In early 2020, the Group began our new fast moving consumer
goods business, which mainly involves in the sales of cosmetics,
daily necessities, fashion and accessories selling to Hong Kong
and South Korea from China. As a procurement agent, the Group
sources for and sells fast moving consumer goods that suit the
customers’ specific requirements as stated in the sale contracts.
As the international supply chain continued to improve and
the strong spending following the apex of COVID-19 lockdown
gradually cooled down in the second half of the Reporting Year, the
orders for the Group's procurement services has slowed down.
During the Reporting Year, the gross margin Group’s fast moving
consumer goods business decreased to RMB2.5 million from
RMB7.2 million in 2020.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, consumer spending is expected to crippled
by the triple pressure — shrinking spending, supply shock and
weakening expectation. Also, as the snack market competition
becomes increasingly fierce, the principal business of the Group
is expected to counter tremendous pressure. Nevertheless, the
Group maintains cautiously optimistic to its fast moving consumer
good business for its low-cost nature and plans to enhance its
supply chain related capacity. On 16 March 2022, the Company has
entered into an agreement to form a joint venture company which
is set to be engaged in high-demand mobile phones and electronic
components and B2B supply chain financing business.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue decreased by
approximately 46.8% to approximately RMB86.5 million from
approximately RMB162.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, primarily due to decreases in both sales volume and average
selling prices.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s revenue
categorized by product types during the Reporting Year:

REXERYHEE
e 2%

RMEBRN AEENEEEREZE T
TEFE+ A=+ BUHEEFEERNHARE
162.7B B TR P #146.8% & 4 N R H#86.65F
BT TERANAEERNERLE RV E

BEHERD -

TRIFIIRNBEFARAEEERER S D

A e 2

Year ended 31 December
BHZE+=-A=+t—HLEE

% to total % to total
2021 revenue 2020 revenue
1l 48 U 3= 1Y R
—E-—F B2 (%) —EEF B (%)
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREEFIT
Food Business R 84,055 97.2% 155,553 95.6%
Fast moving consumer RS E A&
goods and other business H b 27 2,451 2.8% 7,165 4.4%
Total @t 86,506 162,718
GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN EMNRERNR
Gross profit represents our revenue less our cost of sales, and T | $5 Ug 25 8 #8 & A AN - T 5 R 35 E R B LA

our gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue,
expressed as a percentage. The following table sets forth the gross
profit and gross profit margin by segment for the Period.

2021

Wa - ABE D ttﬁlJﬂ’\f’Ti’%%ﬁlJﬁ’\#&iiW

B REI D MENREN X

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE

Gross profit

Gross profit

margin 2020 margin
—E=—% ERRE —T-T4F ek
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)

AR TR ARETT
Food business Rm¥EH 7,468 8.9% 23,551 15.1%

Fast moving consumer RIREHE R K

goods and other business H A 2,451 100% 7165 100%
Total #ET 9,919 11.4% 30,716 18.9%

The Group's gross profit margin was approximately 11.4% and
approximately 18.9% during the Period and for the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly
driven by the increasing proportion of profit from fast moving
consumer good business which has a higher gross profit margin
during the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED T

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Other income represents rental income generated from the
seaweed farms located in Xiapu, the PRC, interest income from
bank deposits, government grant and loss on disposal of plant and
equipment.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employee benefit expenses for employees engaging in the sales
and promotion activities, transportation expenses, advertising and
promotion expenses, rental expenses and other expenses. The
decrease was mainly due to tightened cost control on promotion
and advertising activities during the Year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employees benefit expenses, rental expenses, office expenses,
depreciation and others. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in headquarters expenses during the Year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expense primarily consists of Enterprise Income
Tax, the applicable tax rate of which being 25%. For the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, income tax expense were
approximately RMB1.3 million and RMB1.9 million, respectively.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “"BVI”), we are not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURES

CASH FLOWS

During the Reporting Year, the Group funded its working capital and
other capital requirements principally by cash generated from our
operating activities.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net current assets decreased from approximately RMB391.7 million
as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB334.9 million as at
31 December 2021. The decrease was primarily attributable to an
increase in inventories and cash and cash equivalents and decrease
in trade payables.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AND BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group was approximately RMB176.4 million, as compared to
approximately RMB213.5 million as at 31 December 2020 and the
Group has no bank borrowings.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (calculated by total debt
divided by the total equity as at the end of the year) was 0.059
(31 December 2020: 0.029).

INVENTORIES
As at 31 December 2021, inventories amounted to approximately
RMBG61.7 million (2020: approximately RMB75.5 million). The
number of inventory turnover days was approximately 327 days
(2020: 214 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables amounted to
approximately RMB115.6 million (2020: approximately RMB133.5
million). The Group granted its customers a credit period of 30 to
180 days following the day of delivery. The number of turnover
days for trade receivables was approximately 526 days (2020:
approximately 264 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
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TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2021, trade payables amounted to
approximately RMB2.5 million (2020: approximately RMB16.4
million). The Group managed to obtain a credit period of an average
of 30-60 days from the majority of its suppliers.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB3.0 million (Year
ended 31 December 2020: approximately RMB3.7 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

There was no significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries by the Company during the Reporting
Year. The Group currently has no plan to make any substantial
investment in or acquisition of capital assets, but will continue to
seek for potential investment or acquisition opportunities according
to the Group’s development needs.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in RMB. Most of its assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB. Although the Group may be exposed
to foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect
future currency fluctuations to materially impact the Group's
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies and
no instruments have been applied for foreign currency hedging
purposes during the Reporting Year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 313 full time employees
in total (31 December 2020: 486). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice. Competitive remuneration package is offered
to retain elite employees. The package includes salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident fund schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in
the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to the shareholders.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION

On 5 November 2021, the Company and a Subscriber entered into
the Subscription Agreement under which the Company agreed to
issue and allot and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe, 8,000,000
Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$1.5 per
Subscription Share.

The net proceeds from the Subscription amount to approximately
HK$11,600,000, of which approximately HK$3,000,000 will be
used for staff expenses, approximately HK$2,400,000 will be
used for professional fees and other miscellaneous expenses, and
approximately HK$6,200,000 will be used for purchase/deposit for
purchase of goods.

As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds from the Subscription
has been utilized to the extent of approximately HK$1,471,000
for staff expenses, approximately HK$2,400,000 for professional
fees and other miscellaneous expenses, and approximately
HK$3,600,000 has been used for purchase/deposit for purchase of
goods.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's turnover and results by business
segments for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in note
7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial information for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated financial statements from
pages 48 to 123.

No dividend has been declared or proposed by the Directors in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business, financial key performance indicators and
outlook of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 4 to 5 and pages 9 to 15 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

[t is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment. We strive to
minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our Group in a sustainable way.

We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response
and control procedures as countermeasures for unexpected
environmental pollution accidents to minimise our impact on the
environment and the adverse effect on our business.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company's profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
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EEEHRE

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group's financial results, the general
financial condition of the Group, the Group's current and future
operations, the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position
and capital requirement of the Group, surplus received from the
Company's subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board
deem appropriate. The Company's ability to pay dividends is
also subject to the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and all relevant applicable laws,
rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company does not have any pre-determined distribution ratio. The
Group's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the amount of dividends that
may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of our Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the operational risk in relation to the
business of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our
operations, the potential risks to our business increase as
well. In order to identify, assess and control the risks that may
create impediments to our success, we have implemented a
risk management system that covers each material aspect of
our operations, including financial security, production, logistics,
technology and compliance. As our risk management is a
systematic project, each of our departments is responsible for
identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of operations.
Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing, assessing
and reviewing our risk management policy and supervising the
performance of our risk management system.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

EMPLOYEES

The Company recognizes that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provide competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and make necessary
adjustment to conform to the market standard.

SUPPLIERS

We have developed long-standing relationships with a number of
our suppliers and conducts a fair and strict appraisal on an annual
basis.

CUSTOMERS

We are committed to provide our customers with high quality
products and deliver on a timely basis. We also stay connected
with our customers to keep abreast of the changing customer
preference through regular visits of our sales teams.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 124 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity on page 50 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the Company'’s
articles of association (the "Articles of Association”), amounted
to approximately RMB70.0 million (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB85.1 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 4.5% and 32.7% of the total turnover for the
year 2021 respectively. Purchases from the Group's largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 12.1% and 42.3% of
the total purchases for the year 2021 respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 18 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group did not made charitable contributions
(2020: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and
up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Rongru (Joint-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Li Jiayin (resigned on 1 April 2021)
Ms. Chen Xiaoling (appointed on 1 April 2021)
Mr. Li Dongfan (Joint-Chairman)
(redesignated as executive director on 1 April 2021)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Dajin

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (resigned on 1 April 2021)
Mr. Liu Junting

Mr. He Jian (appointed on 1 April 2021)

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the AGM, has a service agreement which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received confirmation on independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are disclosed
in the section headed "“Biographical Details of the Directors” on
pages 6 to 8 of this annual report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a Deed
of Non-Competition in favour of the Company dated 22 June
2017 (“Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out in the section
of “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” under
the Prospectus. The controlling shareholders confirmed their
compliance of all the undertakings provided under the Deed of
Non-Competition.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies by
the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on
22 June 2017 the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of recognizing and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to the Directors (including Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors), the directors
of the Company’'s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and
any other persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to
grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot,
issue and deal with the shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue immediately following completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Company's prospectus dated 30 June
2018), being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may
be issued under the options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company), unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue of the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is required
to be approved by our Independent Non-executive Directors.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under
the Listing Rules, the number of shares that may be granted to a
substantial shareholder or any Independent Non-executive Director
or their respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 0.1% of
the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, and the period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been ranted. The subscription price of a share in respect
of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take
effect from the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within
a period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors of the Company
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to
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be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to E’Jﬁuaﬁi@ﬁﬁ’i SPRIZE A E AR A F) K
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code: R FfT:
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares Interest (%)
FREA
BEEnR B EatE BRHEE A2 (%)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/
Long position (note) 52,500,000 43.75%
EIESy b RS EEOERFE (M)
Note: B 5 -

The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Precisely Unique Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its Group members or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code.

HEARARANEHCETRABIRNELESERE
SHA HARNMAELEBRANFTERITFENRMN
A e

B?J:YFH&E%%?I\' NAFHRBH WEAR
7§$&m?&ﬁﬁﬁl/\?ﬁf5’é$&7 HAEAA]

AEHAERBEE (EEREBF PR
1|7r< 1§|J %XV*B) B (E o] AR £ ~ 48 B8 A f0 3k B 55
EP%&*ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%h%&ﬁﬂfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%xv*ﬂ%7&8
EBE A e AR R R 32 P fa] A A 2R
KB (BREFRSMITHABRESE %%&
Hﬁ SIRPIN B BIR X R EES IR RIEA BV E
m SRR ) » SR E 5 RS RS 53621k
%ﬁ. /,\nakuiﬂ*ﬁﬁ?ﬁmﬁnaﬂﬁwm’ﬁ& EJZ%‘Q
B RRBEETANERIRE

HREMEEEERAT | B —FFEHRE
China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2021

23



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the following persons/entities
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRAARQARMD K EER G E
BRKRE

REFHBEH TIAL /ER(TEER
RAEEXFRITBRAB)BEEHRER/RN
AREHEBEDB LR LEEEBRRO K
MR A BRIEE 5 L &P EXV
ME2MID MG F AR BN ERIOAR
S RIBFE 75 K HI B IR B £ 336R BN AR
AATHREFNELCMANERIORR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares Interest (%)
BHEREN
RER %A B EntE K& & E B2 (%)
Precisely Unique Limited Beneficial Owner (note 1) 52,500,000 43.75%
HaARA A ERERA (M)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/
Long position (note 1) 52,500,000 43.75%
28800 %k & ZEGEBE R F A (MiEE)
Ms. Lin Yueying Interest of spouse (note 2) 52,500,000 43.75%
MARLZ L I B (MEE2)
Lau Shek Yau Beneficial Owner 8,000,000 6.67%
2aH EREAA
Notes: B 5

1. The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Precisely Unique Limited.

2. Ms. Lin Yueying is the spouse of Mr. Liu Rongru and is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Liu Rongru has interest under the SFO.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the controlling Shareholder
or a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Group and its
connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which
are subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements are connected transactions
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

PURCHASES, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and
neither did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of the Company's listed securities during the year and up to
the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance
practice. The Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 41.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 had been audited by BDO
Limited. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited which retires, and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution to re-appoint McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited and to authorize the Directors to
fix its remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Li Dongfan

Executive Director

Xiamen, the PRC, 17 June 2022
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors' confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and
comply with the increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that up to the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the CG Code except the following deviations:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code, which stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated. The
joint-chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
is Mr. Liu Rongru. Nevertheless, the Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and the authority of
the Board. The Board currently comprises three executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors, with independent
non-executive Directors representing half of the Board. Such
percentage of independent non-executive Directors on the Board
can ensure their views carry significant weight and reflect the
independence of the Board. Mr. Liu Rongru is the founder of the
Group and he is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has played an important role during
the Group's expansion. Mr. Liu Rongru has extensive experience in
the seafood industry, having been engaged in the seafood business
for over 20 years. At present, the Board believes that it is beneficial
to the management and development of the Group's businesses
for Mr. Liu Rongru to be both the chairman and chief executive
officer as it helps to facilitate the Board’s decision-making.
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Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman of the
board to invite the chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend the annual general meeting. In their
absence, he should invite another member of the Committee or
failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend. Due to other
business commitments, the chairmen and members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company could not attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held in May 2021.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of
the Board shall at least annually hold meetings with Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
As Mr. Liu Rongru serves as the Joint-Chairman and Executive
Director concurrently, the code provision does not apply and
the Company deviates from such code provision. In addition,
the Chairman of the Board is of the view that, the Independent
Non-executive Directors can express their opinions to all Executive
Directors more directly and effectively at the Board meetings,
hence the Board is of the view that the deviation from the code
provision does not have material impact on the operation of the
Board.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the shareholders and other
stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The
management is responsible for the daily operations of the
Group under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors
have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of
the Company.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Further details of these Committees are set out below in
section B of this corporate governance report.
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Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Rongru (Joint-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Li Jiayin (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Ms. Chen Xiaoling (appointed on 1 April 2021)

Mr. Li Dongfan (Joint-Chairman)
(redesignated as executive director on 1 April 2021)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Dajin
Mr. Pang Wai Ching (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Mr. Liu Junting
Mr. He Jian (appointed on 1 April 2021)

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors from
different business and professional fields. The profiles of
each Director are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors” section in this annual report. The Directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective delivery of the Board functions.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and to enhance the
quality of performance of the Company. The Policy aims at
achieving diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’'s composition, a number of
perspectives which include race, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical
and professional experience, knowledge, skills, length of
service, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates will be taken into consideration. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution
that the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The
Board will take opportunity to increase the proportion of
female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of Directors who have
direct experience in the Group's core markets, with different
ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group's strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation
of the board diversity policy and report to the Board
annually.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Board Meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened when necessary. Such Board meetings involve
the active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all
the Directors before meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for board meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company
is responsible to keep the minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
five Board meetings have been held, at which the Directors
approved the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and the annual results of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, reviewed the
results announcements and interim and annual reports and
resolved other business matters.

The Company's Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest. According to current
Board practices, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial fixed term of three years commencing from their
respective appointment dates renewable automatically
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other expiring at the
end of the initial term or any time thereafter. All of their
appointments are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with our Company
on their respective appointment dates. Each letter of
appointment is for an initial term commencing on the date
of the letter of appointment and shall continue thereafter
subject to a maximum of three years unless terminated by
either party giving at least one month's notice in writing.
All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
reappointments/appointments of both the Executive
Directors, the Non-executive Director and the Independent
Non-executive Directors and recommended to the Board for
decision.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’'s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has since 22 June 2017 adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code Provisions. Its terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on regular basis; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; to assess the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin, Mr. Liu
Junting and Mr. He Jian (Chairman).

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for
the Nomination Committee to consider and make
recommendations to Shareholders for election as Directors
at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual
vacancies.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in
which the Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;
(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited

to race, gender, age (18 years or above), educational
background, professional experience, skills and length
of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company's business and corporate

strategy,

(6) the number of existing directorships and other
commitments that may demand the attention of the
candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have Independent

Non-executive Directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidates would
be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09
and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any
measurable objectives adopted by the Nomination
Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company'’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises
the need for an additional Director or a member of senior
management, the following procedure will be followed:

(M

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out
in the selection criteria, possibly with assistance from
external agencies and/or advisors;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the
Board with the biographical details and details of the
relationship between the candidate and the Company
and/or Directors, directorships held, skills and
experience, other positions which involve significant
time commitment and any other particulars required
by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and other regulatory requirements
for any candidate for appointment to the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
candidate(s) and the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the
proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity
of the Board, being particularly mindful of gender
balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should obtain all information
in relation to the proposed Director to allow the
Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out
in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee was adopted
in compliance with paragraph C3.3 to C3.7 of the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other
things, are to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors, review the financial statements and provide
material advice in respect of financial reporting and oversee
the internal control and risk management procedures of the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin (Chairman), Mr. He Jian and
Mr. Liu Junting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial statements and the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and the Group.

During the year, two meetings have been held by the Audit
Committee. At such meetings, it reviewed the interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2021. It also reviewed the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 with the independent
auditors and the activities of the Group’s internal control and
risk management functions. It also reviewed the Company'’s
progress in implementing the corporate governance
requirements as set out in the CG Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
22 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
was adopted in compliance with paragraph B1.2. of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Group and to ensure none
of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The
emoluments of Executive Directors are determined based
on their skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability
of such Directors, taking into consideration the Company's
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration policy of Independent Non-executive Directors
is to ensure that they are adequately compensated for their
efforts and time dedicated to the Company's affairs including
their participation in their respective Board committees.
The emoluments of Independent Non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience,
knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the date of this
annual report, the Remuneration Committee consists of
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu
Dajin (Chairman), Mr. Liu Junting and Mr. He Jian.
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Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in note 13
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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During the year, two meetings have been held to review
the remuneration packages paid to Directors and senior
management for the financial year and the remuneration of
new Directors appointed.

RAFEEESRHMEZETER
BeXBHFEERBENEINTXR:

The attendance of individual members of the Board and
other Board Committees meetings during the year is set out
in the table below:

Meeting attended/held

el V% Xok-+
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Ezg ERZEER HWEES REZES
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Liu Rongru (Joint-Chairman and EMEE (BELTEE
Chief Executive Officer) TB#H) 2/4 1/2 1/2 1/2
Ms. Li Jiayin (resigned on 1 April 2021)  ZEZLXE (R -T-_—F
MA—HE{E) 1/4 N/A N/A N/A
Ms. Chen Xiaoling (appointed on BERLT (RZZE=—F
1 April 2021) MA—BEZT) 1/4 N/A N/A N/A
Mr. Li Dongfan (Joint-Chairman) FRNEE (BELE)
(redesignated as executive director on (RZZ=—-5WmA—-A
1 April 2021)) BERMTES) 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Liu Dajin RS 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Pang Wai Ching CYEERE (RZE=—F
(resigned on 1 April 2021) MA—HET) 1/4 12 N/A N/A
Mr. Liu Junting Bk 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. He Jian WEAE (RZE=—FN0
(appointed on 1 April 2021) A—BEZMT) 3/4 172 172 112
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing accounts, the financial
statements, performance position and prospects of
the Group. Management has provided information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
the Board for approval. The Directors believed that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to the events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The accounts for the year were audited by McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the analysis of the
remuneration of the Company's auditor, McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, paid/payable is set out below:

(C)
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Amount

& H
(HK$°000)
(F#&x)

Audit services

The Audit Committee will recommend the reappointment of
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited for audit service,
and consider the engagement of the non-audit services to
ensure the independence and objectivity of audit service.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company. Internal
controls and risk management are used by the Board to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
safeguard the investment of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and to ensure compliance with relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company's internal control
and risk management policies are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements and help the Board identify and mitigate, but
not eliminate, risk exposure. The policies and procedures
of internal controls (which include financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management systems)
are considered to be adequate and effective based on the
annual review conducted by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and maintained procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Company has adopted a code
of conduct for dealing in the securities of the Company by
the Directors in accordance with Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Other employees of the Group who are likely to be
in possession of inside information of the Company are
also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information
and any information which may potentially constitute inside
information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated
to the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for
disclosure. Inside information and other information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
will be announced on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in due course.

In light of the size and scale of the Group's businesses,
the Group currently does not have an internal audit
department. The Board will review and consider to establish
such department as and when it thinks necessary. As
such, the Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is
directly responsible for risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and for reviewing its
effectiveness. In order to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in possession
of relevant expertise to assist in identifying and assessing
the risks of the Group through a series of interviews; and
independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The results of the independent review and
assessment have been reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board. The improvement of the systems of risk
management and internal control is an ongoing process and
the Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen
the Company’s control environment and processes. Based
on the findings and recommendations of the report as
well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association and in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company Secretary has complied with the professional
training requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put
to the Board or senior management by contacting the
Company Secretary through our shareholders’ email at
investors@chinashenghaigroup.com or by phone at 852-3702
6977 or directly by raising questions at the general meetings
of the Company.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of Company'’s
paid up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition deposited at the
Company'’s registered office and addressing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The extraordinary general meeting will be held
within two months after the deposition of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Any Shareholder may appoint a proxy or representative to
attend the general meeting, and they are entitled to exercise
the same voting rights in the meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. To promote effective
communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinashenghaigroup.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs
or other general meetings to communicate with the
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held in May
2021. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Constitutional Documents

The latest version of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company is posted on the Company's
website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAEIRES

McMillanWoods

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SHENGHAI GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Shenghai Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 123, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("“HKASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter we identified is impairment
assessment on trade receivables.

Professionalism at the forefront
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Key Audit Matter
BREZENRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENBNAEERREEZEE

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON TRADE RECEIVABLES
B 5 W E R E

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in
note 4, accounting estimates and judgements in note
5 and disclosure of trade receivables in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BIBMAE B T IRE N 489 EX &5 R BEE - B 5687
DE1GET RAETIA R B 512289 B 5 FEW 50 H 17 25 -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net trade
receivables amounting to RMB115,623,000, after making
loss allowance of RMB29,223,000. It represents 28%
of the total assets of the Group and is considered
quantitatively significant to the Group.
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H (FHEBEEBEARYK
29,223,000t BEEEMNEBESRWRIBIFELSARE
115,623,000t 1h BEEEEEHEN28% HBEHERR
Y EEEmMEEREK

The Group's loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL’) based on
management'’s estimated loss rates for trade receivables.
The estimated loss rates take into account the credit
history including default or delay in payments, settlement
records, subsequent settlements and ageing analysis of
the trade receivables.
EEENBAREESREEEEWE S EBFIENGETIE
AR BEESFR>HEREABR ([BREAEXH
TH-MHABAXZERTERAEL BEBRATEENK -
BEDS BEREARESERKFENRE DT -

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment on trade receivables
included the following:
EENEEEYE SRR ERENEETH
BrefE:

° obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and calculation
of the ECLs;

TREFHBEREEEE EBWERET
EHEHEEEBBRAIZESMNES
Bt KO VERCRL

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
items in the trade receivables ageing
report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the
relevant sales invoices;
FRMALLRERIER EEEEERSR
AHESERRERRRENEBEARS
EoBEEENRRER

FEABEEERAR | S —FFERS
China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2021

43



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RES

Key Audit Matter
BREZENR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENBHNAEEREEZSE

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON TRADE RECEIVABLES
- continued

B 5 BWRRRER S - &

We have identified impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to considerable
amount of judgement and estimates being required in
conducting impairment assessment as mentioned in the
forgoing paragraph.

MR Pt - AR ETRENEEEREMN A B MG
AEHMESE HRUVGRIERNREN HRERBRETSE
I8 o

assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance estimates
by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-
looking information and examining
the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing
whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising
loss allowances; and

FRREERERMMEHERBABNE
B (BEAFRBEE OB ERE R
HREERXEERBENLHEMRR R
AIEMERNELEEABRKEERMK
FEESNEREBE) AHEEEERE
Bt almn: &

inspecting cash receipts from
customers after the financial year end
relating to trade receivables balances on
a sample basis.
MEREVMBREFEEREREEPHNE
SRR EEENRSIA -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
29 March 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’'s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
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Certified Public Accountants HEZIA

Hui Chi Kong o]

Audit Engagement Director EZEBEES

Practising Certificate Number — P07348 HEFBEERS —P07348

24/F, Siu On Centre, BB

188 Lockhart Road, BT

Wanchai, 5% 52 818855

Hong Kong K& 244
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBEaRkEMaEEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ =T =—F+=-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_ZF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARE TR ARETFT
Revenue A 8 86,506 162,718
Cost of sales 55 B AR (76,587) (132,002)
Gross profit EX 9,919 30,716
Other income and other gains/(losses), HUA R E e,
net (B#R)FHE 9 (3,483) 1,100
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SHA AR (31,380) (35,878)
Administrative expenses TR X2 \ (35,750) (19,167)
Expected credit losses on financial assets & @& EMNFEHZEEE (27,158) (3,309)
Finance costs B TS AR 10 (1,558) (444)
Other expenses Hth X (6,911) (3,358)
Loss before tax R BE A 5 18 11 (96,321) (30,340)
Income tax expense Frisfmx 12 (1,347) (1,915)
Loss for the year FRER (97,668) (32,255)
Other comprehensive income ERHMBEEmKES
for the year, net of tax: MRHE:
ltems that will be reclassified HiEgEHsERE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmrIEE
- Exchange differences arising on —REBINEBEEN
translation of foreign operations E X Z=& 567 841
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEHIEHAE (97,101) (31,414)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEEEERSE:
—The owners of the Company —ARREHEAA (97,446) (32,255)
— Non-controlling interests — eV AR M 2 (222) =
(97,668) (32,255)
Total comprehensive expenses DNTELCFEZHMBXEE:
for the year attributable to:
—The owners of the Company - Y/NEIE RN (96,892) (31,414)
- Non-controlling interests —FEIERR R (209) -
(97,101) (31,414)
Loss per share (RMB) BEREB(AR%T)
— Basic and diluted —ERK#E 16 (0.9649) (0.3226)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e PRI R

At 31 December 2021 R=—ZE-——%#+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T T AR®ETT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KM 18 30,999 56,979
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 28 - 731
Deposits paid to suppliers X THER RS 19 4,922 1,479
Rental deposits HEZS 20 468 477
Prepayments SEENEN 20 3,500 3,500
39,889 63,166
Current assets REEE
Inventories "E 21 61,737 75,452
Trade receivables HIRWGRE 22 115,623 133,482
Deposits paid to suppliers SN THEBZES 19 2,857 7821
Deposits, prepayments and e BNFIER
other receivables H i & Y IE 20 9,472 6,392
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRESEEY 23 176,402 213,479
366,091 436,626
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables E 5 R FIE 24 2,482 16,353
Accruals, deposits received and EErER BlRE R
other payables H b jE S ROR 25 17,262 15,467
Debentures BEH 26 6,213 6,287
Lease liabilities HEBR 27 1,805 2,916
Provision for taxation IR 3,423 3,878
31,185 44,901
Net current assets RBEEFE 334,906 391,725
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 374,795 454,891
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Debentures B 26 14,990 6,959
Lease liabilities HEABR 27 813 1,515
15,803 8,474
Net assets REE 358,992 446,417
Equity s
Share capital fig A 29 9,388 8,723
Reserves fE 31 349,813 437,694
359,201 446,417
Non-controlling interests AR = (209) >
Total equity DR 358,992 446,417
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HEZEZE@R_ZE__F XA+ tHILERRK
17 June 2022. RETIE

Li Dongfan
TR
Director

EF
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Liu Junting
BRE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ =T =—F+=-A=+—HILFE
(BRBBERIN UARBHIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Foreign
currency Non-
Share Share Special Statutory translation Other Retained controlling Total
capital Premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
oS RHEE RHRE EERE  NRAERE StfifE RERA Bt FERER BRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETL  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARBTL  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
[note 31b)) ~ (note 31(0)il) (ot 31(bIGi)  (note 31(b)iv))  Inote 31(b)v))
(WaEa1o) (st (HEEbi)  (MaE3toiv)  (HEE31bIM)
At 1 January 2020 K-%-%%-8-H 8,723 138,185 17800 18,625 (1,989) 5,800 290,687 477831 - 477831
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ FREBR2ENELER
and changes in equity for the year BaEE - - - - 841 - (32,255) (31.414) - [31,414)
At 31 December 2020 and RZ2-%5+-R=1+-A
1 January 2021 R=F--%-f-H 8,723 138,185 17800 18,625 (1,148) 5800 268,432 446,417 o 446417
Subscription of new shares RE-REEDBHRS
under general mandate 665 931 - - - - - 9,976 - 9,976
Share issue expenses ROBGER - (300) - - - - - (300) - (300)
Loss and total comprehensive EREER2ANEEE
income for the year - - - - 554 - (97446) (96,892) (209) (97.101)
Change in equity for the year FREEED 665 9,01 - - 554 - (97,446) (87.216) (209) (87425)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-F+-A=+-A 9,388 147196 17,800 18,625 (594) 5,800 160,986 359,201 (209) 358,992
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ =T =—F+=-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

2021 2020
—E=-—F T -TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Loss before tax B Bt B 5 1R (96,321) (30,340)
Adjustments for: FEULAT&BERFHE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % &= MR EITE 17,762 17,453
Written down of inventories FEMR 3,285 2,105
Impairment losses of property, M- BEREBEREERE
plant and equipment 2,973 675
Impairment losses on deposit paid to suppliers Xt FHER ZIZEH
B &R 1,439 17
Impairment losses of trade receivables B 5 WG IE R E E 1B 24,643 3,292
Impairment losses on other receivables Hoh e WK IR (B B 18 1,076 =
Bank interest income HRATH B A (655) (857)
Interest on lease liabilities HERBZHME 186 215
Interest expense on debenture BREFEZFEAX 1,372 229
Gain on early termination of lease REKRIEHEE 2 W (28) =
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEME - BERZED
and equipment BB 4,191 =
Operating loss before working capital changes = 2@ &S E SR ML L EIE (40,077) (7211)
Decrease in inventories FERD 10,430 1,549
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE WK IE 18 B (6,967) (34,496)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments e B RIERE AR
and other receivables FIE (M), E A (4,256) 968
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables E SR ZRE RD), /18 (13,689) 7,637
Increase in accruals, deposits received and EETER BlEe &
other payables H b & 1 ZRIE 3 0 2,161 2,798
Cash used in operations wEESMAR S (52,398) (28,755)
Income taxes paid BERES (1,070) (3,897)
Net cash used in operating activities KEESMAFR S (53,468) (32,652)
Cash flow from investing activities REFBRERE
Prepayment of acquisition of property, WY - WE R
plant and equipment TEAT3RIB - (3,500)
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BMERZHEEE
plant and equipment (2,970) (3,699)
Proceeds from disposals of property, BEYE BENRZHEN
plant and equipment FriS K18 5,000 =
Interest received B F B 655 857
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEFESHELE (FTH)FRS
investing activities 2,685 (6,342)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ =T =—F+=-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HERI - AARES|R)

2021 2020
—EB-—fF T -TF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARE TR ARETFT
Cash flow from financing activities MEITBHRERE
Prepayment for lease HETETH - (960)
Repayment of the lease liabilities EEHEARE (2,848) (1,889)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEGETE (186) (215)
Proceeds from debentures BH TSR 13,301 19,776
Repayment of debenture BEES (6,099) (7.196)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT P15 50IE 9,976 =
Share issue expenses BHEITER (300) -
Net cash from financing activities MEEBMEFRE 13,844 9,516
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents WD FE (36,939) (29,478)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EREFhHF & (138) 379
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HHWEEER
1 January REeEZEEY 213,479 242,578
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=+—HH
31 December RERBESEEY 176,402 213,479
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BE&RRESEEBEYND N
Bank and cash balances RIT NI & A ER 23 176,402 213,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B B BRI UAREDIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Shenghai Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 January 2016
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as revised and
consolidated) of the Cayman lIslands and its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 July
2017. The Company's registered office is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The Company's principal place of
business is located at 5th floor, No.5 Factory, Mexi Road,
Huandong Water, Tongon District, Hui Industrial Park, Xiamen
City, Fujian Province, PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with
the Company collectively refer to as “Group”) is packaging
and sales of seafood products and procurement and sales of
fast moving consumer goods and others.

The directors consider the Company's immediate and
ultimate holding company is Precisely Unique Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
controlling shareholder is Mr. Liu Rongru.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which in collectible
term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(A)

(B)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied any new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2021. These new and revised HKFRSs include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Business Combination
— Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS
16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37
Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022

HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs - 3. BRI REIETERM KRS
continued R —-E&
(B) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) CHEAEEAREMZBITIRE

YET EFFECTIVE - continued

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2023
Presentation of Financial
Statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality
Judgements — Disclosure of
Accounting Policies
Amendments to HKAS 1 January 2023
8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 1 January 2023
Income Taxes — Deferred
Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendment to HKFRS 16 1 April 2021
COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B B BRI UAREDIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

(A) CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability
to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company's share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(A)

CONSOLIDATION - continued

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners
of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(B)

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is
Hong Kong Dollars. The directors consider
that choosing Renminbi as the presentation
currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the company initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 4. EREHHBER-&

(B)

(C)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION - continued (B)
(iii)  Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company's
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (C)
Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the

production or supply of goods, or for administrative

purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(C)

(D)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows

Electric equipment 3 years
Plant and machinery 8-10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

Shorter of lease term and
remaining useful life

Leasehold improvement

Shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term

Right-of-use assets

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

LEASES

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
LEASES - continued

(D)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
LEASES - continued

(D)

(i)

The Group as a lessee — continued

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
LEASES - continued

(D)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee — continued

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases,
the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS
16 and recognised the change in consideration
as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(E)

(F)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised in the profit or loss in the period
of write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories recognised
as an increment in the amount of inventories and
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(F)

(G)

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(G)

FINANCIAL ASSETS - continued

Debt investments — continued

- FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income
is recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

4,

EXEABR-&

(G)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(H)

)

(J)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses ("ECL").

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

BORROWINGS
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from sale of seafood and algae products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the buyer's specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the buyer has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation
to the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the buyer as this
represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(N)

(0)

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME - continued
Customers obtain control of the fast moving
consumer goods when the goods are shipped.
Revenue from procurement and sale for these goods
is thus recognised at point in time basis upon when
the customers accept the fast moving consumer
goods. There is generally only one performance
obligation. The Group recognises revenue on net basis
as its revenue for procurement and sale where the
Group acts as agent are provided by other suppliers
to the customers.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

4,

EXETBR-&

(N)

(0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(0)

(P)

(Q)

(R)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - continued

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits,
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will
be received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable.

TAXATION
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(R)

TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(R)

(S)

TAXATION - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

RELATED PARTIES

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that
is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or a parent
of the Company.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(S) RELATED PARTIES - continued
(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(T)

(V)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal
of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit.
Present values are computed using pre-tax discount
rates that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit and
then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates
are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACTS ASSETS

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease
receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as
well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables.
The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(V)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACTS ASSETS - continued

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses
that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACTS ASSETS - continued

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

(V)

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

(iii)

the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(V)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACTS ASSETS - continued

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with
the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal
rating of “performing” Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there
is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

HETEREARAR | T - —FFERE

4,

EXEABER-&

(V)

China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2021

77

ERMEERGNEERE-&

EEBBRAE L&

AEBERRZ WEEMNIEIE
EFESRBERBRAERD (R
BRI oM SN BB AF AR AT
BA-mEENARITRS X

EEEUZH AlZemBEERAR
FEERR - RRRTERHH
?E’Jﬂﬂkﬂkﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁm
I8 o

KEIEH}%WT AIABREE
REEANELEANRENE
xﬁ(IEE Y@M BN MERT R

% RIZERNN & AN
GIEEGIRER SN PN =R b
B ZESE

ASKERBUTERF AN
ERBREEBMM S BKED
= RARBELERBRT
B DA E ] — B R 2 FE MR

— AR -

- XSHFRRUBR
%o

- RBEERANBIR
RO ERAT BB

ATKABERIEREA (2
BASH)Z2EER (T
SARAKEFE ZEMA
HiRam) o

mwm b S ERNME - KE
ERESHEESERI0H
REREEY KRIEXAEES
SFEASERZERESR iZi%
YIZER AEE - AIER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(V)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACTS ASSETS - continued
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(V)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACTS ASSETS - continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes
the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding
of the specific future financing needs of the debtors,
and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(V)

(W)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(A)

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage
2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2
when its credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(A)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets
belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES -
continued
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY -
continued

(A)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment —
continued

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2021 were approximately
RMB30,999,000 (2020: RMB56,979,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and
Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT"”) in the PRC. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

During the year, approximately RMB1,347000 (2020:
HK$1,915,000) of income tax was charged to profit or
loss based on the estimated profits.

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables
based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
trade receivables is approximately RMB115,623,000
(2020: RMB133,482,000), being net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately RMB29,223,000
(2020: RMB4,580,000).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. tHEAKRER
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: AEEBEHSCHARSESRRAR
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest SRR EERR - RBEER
rate risk. The Group's overall risk management programme X A & & B ZFEIZ*&E““H % B IR
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and FFEBRESmmB o AAUEANL  h
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's K AEBEM B RIR CBETHE
financial performance. BRERK-
(A) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (A) SRR

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in RMB and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

(B) CREDIT RISK (B)
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its trade receivables, deposits paid to suppliers,
deposits, amount due from a related party, amount
due from a director, other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30 to 120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 30 days past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(B)

CREDIT RISK - continued

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on trade
receivables from the Group's five largest customers
at 31 December 2021 amounting to RMB45,232,000
(2020: RMB48,732,000) and accounted for 31%
(2020: 35%) of the Group's total trade receivables. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure
by frequent review of the credit evaluation of the
financial condition and credit quality of its customers
to ensure that prompt actions will be taken to lower
exposure.

(i) Trade receivables
The Group measures loss allowances for trade

6. EHREREE-&

(B)

FEERKR-E
AEEBNEERBRSEF
BEAEBRRAAEFENE
WHmB- R - —F+
Z=+t—H RKBREAE
BESEUFTESEAARE
45,232,000T (ZZE=FF: A
R #48,732,0007T) " E A& H
B oS IEATEE31% (=
TE-_THE:36%)  BEEEE
SHRERK ARAEEEB
AR ERP SRR R
FEEEZMNEETERFES
y‘zﬁﬁ'@ﬁunﬂ E{]7}</E EE{%&
H‘J??KHX @JEEF{EFJ:[EEWE’]HM

T No 3
5 o

(i) EZEWRFE
REBRE D ERWFIR

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, ESERE HEw
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As ERNEREEEEE
the Group's historical credit loss experience ZEHEHEEREIE-
does not indicate significantly different loss BERAEEZBAEE
patterns for different customer segments, the BAE&BRBR TRAXE
loss allowance based on past due status is Fo#flzBREXNLE
not further distinguished between the Group's HEZE WEREBH
different customer bases. AREEEH 2 BB B I
BE-—THRAEETRH
EEEZEEHES
The following table provides information about RZEZ—F+=A
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECL Sop— El T%%TET ZE)
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2021: BASEEERRESE
fﬂféf%ﬂéf\ﬂﬁlmlﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂ
FEEBENER:
2021
—E-—F
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
EHEER HEREE EiERE
% RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR
Current (not past due) BIER (K@ HA) 2.13% 38,456 821
1 - 90 days past due #1590 4.87% 21,107 1,028
91 - 180 days past due #HI91E 1808 13.42% 32,591 4,375
More than 180 days past due @ HJ180H M + 43.65% 52,692 22,999
144,846 29,223
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6.
(B)
(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
CREDIT RISK - continued

6.

TREAMEE-&

(B)

FERR-&

Trade receivables — continued (i) EZENKE &
2020
—T-FF
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHEER BEREE BiERE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETIT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BIER (K@) 1.62% 57,333 931
1 - 90 days past due BH1E90R 2.39% 41,165 985
91 - 180 days past due #HI91Z=180H 4.64% 24,658 1,145
More than 180 days past due  #Hi180H M £ 10.19% 14,906 1,519
138,062 4,580
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss EHEEXREERE
experience. The above expected loss rates BB E - L TEE
are adjusted to reflect differences between &5 18 2 4% 5 B DA I B iR
economic conditions during the period over SERCHEBEHBOHLE
which the historic data has been collected, AR~ B AT AR O B AR &
current conditions and the Group's view of B8 5 E W FRIATEH
economic conditions over the expected lives of FHLBERRANE L2
the trade receivables. REEE-
Movement in the loss allowance for trade R R E 5 & WK IR &
receivables during the year is as follows: BREENEENT
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
At 1 January n—H—H 4,580 1,288
Impairment losses recognised  FER TR EE B
for the year 24,643 3,292
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 29,223 4,580
REFEREARAR | =T = —F
China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2021

85
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6.

(B) CREDIT RISK - continued

(ii)

(B)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition. However,

if the credit risk on

the deposits and other receivables has not
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for the
deposits and other receivables at an amount

equal to 12-month ECL.

The Group uses four categories for deposits
and other receivables which reflect their credit
risk and how the loss provision is determined

for each of the categories.

In calculating the

ECL rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category and adjusts for forward

TREAMEE-&

EERKE-&

(i) B2REMEWKIE
ik e & E b U ERIE
mes WEERRA Y
18 FE R LA T 3R K IR
F AEB®IREEE
Hi=E &8 R Wik
© REMEWKIENE
ER BB TR ERIAR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁk%tﬂﬂu
AEBZAER121E A
EHEEEEMNSET
2SR EMEWRFIE
B R o

$%E%E$&E@%
W* 7 7% P fE 58 Al

%ﬁﬁﬁ B & &
BAIE E B E B R
HE-RAERYREER
BEXE AEEZRE

looking data. EEIMNBARBEE.
I g A B 1 BUR E 1T
o
Basis for recognition of
Category Definition ECL provision
5l E & BRAPCEBEERBENEE
Performing Low risk of default 12-month ECL
RERF EHRERIE 12 AEREEER

Underperforming

RERE

Non-performing

REATR

Write off

1 55

HETERERRAR | =

Significant increase in credit risk

(B PN R

The counterparty will enter
bankruptcy
HHEeRE

There is no reasonable
expectation of recovery

I 5 E R H

—EFERE
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(B)
(ii)

CREDIT RISK - continued

6. ﬁﬂjﬂpﬁ%ﬁ:ig_n_g
EERR-&

(B)

Deposits and other receivables — continued (i) #2REMEWE—
&
The following table provides information TRIBEREBELAEEF
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and ERR#BERMNN_-Z
ECL for deposits paid to suppliers and other ——F+ZA=+—8H
receivables which has significant increase in XA THERNEZS R
the credit risk as at 31 December 2021: Hi R RIBEEERR
ANE EARNEREER
BrER:
2021
e
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
FHEEE HIREE EiERE
Internal credit rating % RMB’000 RMB'000
AEEEFTR AR¥ETR AR®T R
Deposit paid to supplier Performing
X TFHEFNEZEE KERMT 18.0% 9,489 1,710
Other receivables Performing
H At e U R KERM 16.8% 6,416 1,076
2020
—T-THF
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TBHEEX BRHEE R
Internal credit rating % RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEERR ARETTT AR®FT
Deposit paid to supplier Performing
XNTFHERNEZES KRR 2.83% 9,571 271
Other receivables Performing
H & 5B KERMF 0% 218 -
The above expected loss rates are adjusted FiEHEERELHA
to reflect differences between economic BPA R M R SR B

conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of
economic conditions over the expected lives
of the deposits paid to suppliers and other
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(B)

(C)

(D)

6. EHREREE-&

CREDIT RISK - continued (B) fFERE-&
(i)  Deposits and other receivables — continued (ii) HERAMEKE—
F
Movement in the loss allowance for deposits REAZNFHRHER 2
paid to suppliers and other receivables during e REMEWRIE 2
the year is as follows: EHEBEEESNT
2021 2020
—E=-—F —TTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
At 1 January ®n—HA—A 271 254
Impairment losses recognised RERNSHERREEE
for the year 2,515 17
At 31 December R+tZ—A=+—H 2,786 271
For rental deposits and amounts due form a HREEZRS R EKEH
related party and a director, there were no $F&§$/ HEH
significant increase in credit risk since initial B B & 7 R AR08
recognition. The Group assessed the expected HREEBEEM AEER
credit loss to be immaterial. H?QQHETEETEITE
x o
INTEREST RATE RISK (C) F = & b
The Group's unsecured debentures and lease rEEEERESNNEEAE
liabilities bear interests at fixed interest rates and ZEEMNEGFE HASER
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks. BN FEFERR -
The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from NEEF = E BB BITFER
its bank deposits. The bank deposits bear interests EE - ROFRELERRT
at floating rates that vary with the then prevailing MREB) 2 FEFEET B -
market condition.
Except as stated above, the Group does not have B £ XCRraiaE Oh - A& B R W
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities HHRWEHEMERGTEEE
at the end of reporting period, its income and kBE: Euﬁlf\&ﬁi“%iﬁ/i\ﬁ
operating cash flows are substantially independent of ERIOEMBNEEGHTE-
changes in market interest rates.
LIQUIDITY RISK (D) RBEEER
The Group’'s policy is to regularly monitor current REBZBEBTEHERER
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that LR ESF R J//UJW
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its HRENEHERERBDE
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. cRBERERBAFE X
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRERE i&iﬁﬁﬂf$%$
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the BBEH TENOIHER 75
Group's financial liabilities, based on undiscounted D/(?fiﬁﬁfifﬁimé( BiEEAE
cash flows (including interest payments computed %’\]*‘J%Qﬂh&&ﬁbﬂ$u‘l‘f%\'
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates Bl & B Eﬁﬁ’]fﬁﬁﬂ+?r”
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date B F B AT ) RN & E B R
the Group can be required to pay. MExFHEBRE®E-
D EASREERAR | — B —EEERE
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e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

(D)

(E)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6. SHEAKEE-E&
LIQUIDITY RISK - continued (D) #RBELEMK-—&
The maturity analysis based on contractual REBEBFRTESRABGIRAD
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’'s non- AMBRBEREEENEHA
derivative financial liabilities is as follows: DWW
Within 1 year
oron Between 1 Between 2
demand and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years Total
AR-FRZ R-5% REEZE
REXREE MER RER  EENLEER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFR AREFL AREFT ARETT
31 December 2021 —E--%
tZA=+-AH
Trade payables g5 EMRE 2,482 - - - 2,482
Accruals, deposits received and Eit &R BRESR
other payables H At AT X E 17,262 - - - 17,262
Debenture &% 7,031 679 10,216 7,059 24,985
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,896 883 - S 2,779
31 December 2020 k-l 35
+=ZA=+-8H
Trade payables B HEMFE 16,353 = = = 16,353
Accruals, deposits received and B ER BlEREK
other payables HAEMZE 15,467 = = = 15,467
Debenture &% 6,944 365 1,095 7689 16,093
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,114 1,675 364 - 5,153
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT (E) Rt-—HA=+—8Bz&€®mI A
31 DECEMBER 5 5l
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEZEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T X AREFT
Financial assets: EMEE:
Financial assets at amortised BREBHEN AT ENESREE
cost 308,684 359,917
Financial liabilities: cRas:
Financial liabilities at amortised REHEKATTENSRAR
cost 40,947 45,066
FAIR VALUES (F) A¥HE

(F)

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

HETEREARAR | T - —FFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.
The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

- packaging and sales of marine products segment
- all other segment

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include certain other income and other gains/(losses),
certain finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented in the

consolidated financial statements as they are not regularly
reviews by the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").

HRETEREARAR | T —FFERE

2 EBEFR
AEEBMIER2HmD M-

- B I 35 & 7K EE dn ) &P
- P E Aty &6

AEBEH R 2HmN B RERETFEM®
RRBHREERBEM - AR & FEH
78 & B S R il B 7 55 1 B AR B 8

RETEROMASRER -

REDE 2 T B ELR S P B MK
MiEEapTiE —H-DHEE T EBES
TEMBARE M (BE) &
THHERARRDEEERA

=

BEMBERESSMHRETD
CTTRABEY A EHAAEEE
BeRARE([TBEREREE])

\af o

D

=

B} M8 o

&
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. PEER-—E
(A) OPERATING SEGMENT OF THE GROUP (A) ZTEEREDM
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: @A E2FnHERNER:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—F+=-A=1+-—
HIEFE
Sale of marine All other

products segment Total
HEKER FiEE it 2 3 @it
RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARBT T ARBTR

Revenue from external customers  REMREFHKE

From external customers REIAEP 84,055 2,451 86,506
Segment results DWEE (70,883) (9,911) (80,794)
Other income Hng A 1
Finance costs RBRA (1,426)
Corporate expenses rERY (14,102)
Loss before tax BRERIEE (96,321)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZF+=-A=+—

BHLEFE
Sale of marine All other
products segment Total
HEKEM REEMDE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from external customers ~ REMRAEF KW E

From external customers RKANREF 155,553 7165 162,718
Segment results DWEE (25,887) 3,179 (22,708)
Other income Hb U A 187
Finance costs AR (229)
Corporate expenses TPERT (7590)
Loss before tax bR A ES 1B (30,340)

REFSEMARAR | =T —FEERE
China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2021
91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7. PEER-—E
(A) OPERATING SEGMENT OF THE GROUP - (A) TEBREST-&
continued
Other Segment Information: HapnEER:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—E-——F+=-H=1+-—
HLEFE
Sale of
marine All other
products segments  Unallocated Total
HEKER FMEHMGIH AAE @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Amounts (charged)/credited in (MBR) /A2 HER

the measurement of segment SFEZHE:!
profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, NE -BELSEBRE
plant and equipment (13,837) (3,138) (787) (17,762)
Impairment losses on financial assets & B & E R E/RE (25,927) (694) (537) (27,158)
Impairment losses on property, ME BER&E
plant and equipment REEE (1,505) - (1,468) (2,973)
Finance cost BBRA (104) (28) (1,426) (1,558)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZHF+=-A=+—
BHLEFE
Sale of
marine All other
products segments  Unallocated Total
HEKER MEBEHMDH KA @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®Tr ARBEFR AR®ETR
Amounts (charged)/credited in (B /A2 HER
the measurement of segment FTEZRE:
profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - BERREINE

equipment (15,698) (1,755) = (17453)
Impairment losses on financial assets 4 & & & R{EE B (2,974) (163) (172) (3,309)
Impairment losses on property, plant #1% - BUE Rk R &R E

and equipment B (675) - - (675)
Finance cost B 15 P AR (151) (64) (229) (444)
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e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

7 SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 7 DEER - &

(B) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (B)
Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers presented based on the geographical
location where the Group operates is as follows:

iy 3 R
REAGEZEMEHIELE
BRASEXRBIIATF K
HNERZNMT :

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-THF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R AREFIT

Mainland China B K BE 84,055 155,553
Hong Kong BB 1,118 236
South Korea raE 1,333 6,929
Consolidated total A BET 86,506 162,718

Over 90% of the Group's non-current assets
(excluding deferred tax assets, deposits paid
to suppliers, rental deposits and prepayments)
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no further
geographical information of non-current assets to be
disclosed.

(C) INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS (C)
There was no revenue from individual customers
of the Group contributing over 10% of the Group's
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

8. REVENUE 8. U &=
Revenue represents the aggregation of net amount received WEEFRNE LB W R EBGRIEFEE -
and receivables during the year. An analysis of the Group's AEBFAWZDWOT
revenue for the year is as follows:
2021 2020
—E—F —ZT-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ABR®BTR ARETTT

Recognised at a point in time within the &8 B 1§ & % B 51557

scope of HKFRS 15: & E iR B R
Sale of marine products 555 7K EE M 84,055 155,553
Procurement and sales of fast moving HEMEERREERLEM
consumer goods and others 2,451 7165
86,506 162,718
9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), 9. HttWARHEMWKE " (BE) -
NET HE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREF T
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIF A B U A 655 857
Rental income el A 17 55
Government grants* XA 4 B * S 145
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEMRENEE
plant and equipment (4,191) -
Gain on early termination of lease RERIEHRE 2 W 28 =
Others HAth 8 43
(3,483) 1,100
e Government grants represent subsidies from the Government of the * AT Bh 18 B B R BT IR @ BT IR BB AR
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Employment PEEREEN R - NWMEBR K
Support Scheme. At the end of the reporting period, there is no A A I % BURT 77 B BT A5 A R B 1T IR 1 5k
unfulfilled conditions nor other contingencies attached to the HihE18-

government grants.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

10.

1.

FINANCE COSTS 10. BEFFEM A
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAGEHNE 186 215
Interest expense on debentures BHFERAX 1,372 229
Total s 1,558 444

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss for the year is arrived at after charging/

11. BKHBAEHE

AEBEFEREBRENR, (GFA)

(crediting) the following: TH| &8 :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S 6N B & 748 964
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAR 73,302 129,897
Written down of inventories FEMR 3,285 2,105
Research expenditure T3 652 578
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERREITE
equipment 17,762 17453
Gain on early termination of lease RERIEHENEE (28) S
Impairment losses on property, plant and #2%  i&E MR &R EE B
equipment 2,973 675
Impairment losses of trade receivables B SR IEREEE 24,643 3,292
Impairment losses on other receivables i J& U 3 T8 5 (E &5 18 1,076 =
Impairment losses on deposit X THERNIZSH
paid to suppliers BEEE 1,439 17
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BEKEENEIE
plant and equipment 4,191 -
Operating lease rental in respect of: THSENLEHERS
— Short-term leases expenses —REEEEY T 514 507
Staff costs (including directors’ BEINA (BREEEHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries —%& 24,075 29,364
- Bonus —JE4T 4,506 491
- Retirement benefit scheme — iR IRTEFFT &l 5k
contributions 2,906 2,086
31,487 31,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

12. FEHHAX
FeErmBERTHRBSERE:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT

Current tax B HATIE
Tax for the year FEHIE - 434
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEREBETR 616 149
616 583

Deferred tax IEET IR
Current year KEE 731 1,332
Total @t 1,347 1,915

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity established
in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits
of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit
Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
25% (2020: 25%).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before income tax per the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as follows:

RBEMEHMAS EFEXNLNE
EREEERE2ABE LA B R
8.25% M) T KB - Max & & A LAY

i A %

EIZ16. 5% T R - %
AEFSEMAHERNERTEN G
R 15 45 4 $216.5 % B Bt RAH T -

FEMEMSRIIIER KL% (ZF
—EF25% ) tEH B o

FRANMAEHRASEZES 2ETER
PREIROBR PRSI RIS R B AR AN T

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEZEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Loss before tax bR AT ES 1B (96,321) (30,340)
Tax thereon at domestic rates applicable REAREBEIEREER
to profit or loss in the jurisdictions BN AR RGN E
concerned (21,917) (7222)
Underprovision in prior year BEFEBRETR 616 149
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ ] Bt % T 1K &9 5 52 &Y
tax purposes Bise 2 5,894 296
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for NSO ONEOE 2
tax purpose (1) (23)
Tax effect of temporary differences RAERNEFEEZEDN
not recognised BBxE 6,844 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNHEEBEENRBETE 9,911 8,715
Income tax expense for the year FAMEHRAY 1,347 1,915
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 13. EESFHMRESHE
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (A) EEH
Allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind contributions Total
EER
He e i ENEN  BRAGEMT @t

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARETR  ARETR  ARBTRT  AR®TR  ARETR  ARET:R

31 December 2021 —E--%
+=ZR=t-8
Executive directors BEE
Mr. Liu Rongru 2% mEE - 977 765 - 15 1,757
Ms. Li Jiayin TEERL (1) - 21 208 - 1 230
Mr. Li Dongfan FRAKE 2) - 599 1,870 - 11 2,480
Ms. Chen Xiaoling RERTL (3) - 374 - - n 385
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Li Dongfan FRAEE (2) - 199 - - 4 203
Independent non-executive  BUFERTEE
directors
Mr. Liu Dajin RELE 83 - - - - 83
Mr. He Jian REE 4) 31 S S S 5 31
Mr. Pang Wai Ching YRIEEE (6) 38 - - - - 38
Mr. Liu Junting AL 42 - - - - 1Y)
194 2,170 2,843 - 42 5,249
31 December 2020 —E-FE
+-A=+-H
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Liu Rongru BEmEE - 1,681 - - 7 1,688
Ms. Li Jiayin FEELL - 536 5 - 16 597
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Li Dongfan FRAEE 2) - 857 446 - 16 1319
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITEE
directors
Mr. Liu Dajin AxEEE 89 - - - - 89
Mr. Chen Sze Hung REELE (5) 3 - - - - 3
Mr. Pang Wai Ching YBRIELE 161 - - - - 161
Mr. Liu Junting ke 1] 43 - - - - 43
29 3,07 491 - 39 3,900

HREMEEEERAT | B —FFEHRE
China Shenghai Group Limited | Annual Report 2021

97



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

13.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued

(A)

13.

EEFMREESME -&

DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS - continued (A)

Notes:

(1) Ms. Li Jiayin resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 April 2021.

(2) Mr. Li Dongfan was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 14 January 2020 and was
redesignated as an executive director of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2021.

(3) Ms. Chen Xiaoling was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 April 2021.

(4) Mr. He Jian was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 April 2021.

(5) Mr. Chen Sze Hung resigned as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 14 January 2020.

(6) Mr. Pang Wai Ching resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the company with effect from 1 April
2021.

(7) Mr. Li Junting was appointed as the independent non-

executive director of the Company with effect from
14 January 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of
the Company or its subsidiaries. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

No director received any emoluments from Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. No director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 13. EEFHNREEMNE &
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued
(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (B) EHZNERSHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for HEZT-_—FR-ZT-FF
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are TZA=T-RHLEFEAREE
analysed as followed: AfusESHATHITAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANE
Directors ] 3 3
Non-directors FE=E 2 2
5 5
Details of the remuneration of the above non- rtiEE - FR T
directors, the highest paid individuals for the year TE+ZA=T—HBILEFEN
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: REOFIEEBEATHGTMFS
R
2021 2020
:‘?i:—ﬂi — 7 — E'E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFIT
Salaries, bonuses and other Fe AREMEYREF
benefits in kind 2,019 1,792
Retirement benefit scheme RRE R B
contributions 13 21
2,032 1,813
FRASERBRAR| = —FFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

13.

14.

15.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 13. EEFMEEEME &
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued
(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS - continued (B) HUBSHFAL-&
The number of non-directors, highest paid employees, Mle N FATRANFEES .
whose emoluments fell within the following bands, is = EHREE AE:
as follows:
2021 2020
—EBZ—F —T-THF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 L%
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HE_ZT-—FR=-ZZ=FF
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any +ZA=+—BLFE &L
of the non-director highest paid individuals as an EMEmmAAsadEEEA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or TERNME  EABBEIMAR
as compensation for loss of office. There were no SEAMAXEEENEE -
arrangements under which these individuals waived SEABEBRMUNBE-BE
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ZE—FRZIFZFEF+ =
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. A=+—BHLFE BEZS
AT HRE R 2 N E WEE (A
& B & HE -
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN 14. EENRG ZRHEREGHUZEK
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR =
CONTRACTS
Save for disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial B 43 & BF 75 R 3% MY 5357 #F 78 & A
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and RER D F AT AIEERE - AR AT
contract in relation to the Group's business to which ERAEBERKITVERARAIES
the Company was a party and in which a director of the MEEHEFNEREESBEES
Company and the director’s connected party had a material BEARRIERRS THEEH -
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
DIVIDEND 15. RE

No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company
during the year (2020: Nil).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

16.

LOSS PER SHARE 16.

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
following:

BRER
BREXER

BRERNEBDRETRTE:

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFTT
Loss attributable to owners KRNFEER AELEE
of the Company (97,446) (32,255)
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZETF
Number’'000 Number'000
F B TR
Weighted average number LB mEFEIEE
of ordinary shares 100,986 100,000
Notes: sk -
Diluted loss per share were the same as the basic loss per share as the HRAEERBE-_Z-—FR_FT-TF

Group had no potential ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

HETEREARAR | T - —FFERE
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e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% (2020: 5%) of the
salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount
of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully
with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC, the employees of a Group's subsidiary established in
the PRC is a member of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. This subsidiary is
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
this subsidiary. The only obligation of this subsidiary with
respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the
required contributions under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

HRETEREARAR | T —FFERE

17.

BIKEFREE

AEBRBEEEAFNMEAESTENE
Bl AEBSHEAERESEIERHE
NiEEEHE ([afEestE)) - AEE
Hoafaest a2 H\RIEHFERTEN
5% (ZZE_ZTHF 5% )18 HES
EEBARS®EA1008T(-F
—ZF 11,5008 ) R EMBE S

FURB2AEBNES -

RETEBBRAUNEERRE A%
BERBERIOMBEARNEEZ2M
77 T BT B AR R R RARIR B AT EI -
ZH B AR AR REARE B RE
BEAHERTENETED LR
ARRREFIRHEE S 077 T R
EEAREZHB LB AAERE RRE
BRARRBEONEKBHMEE - ZME L
AR RBARESF BN E - BT AE
MEHEIE TR EMHK -

RZEZ—FR_FE_FF+=A
—t+—BYEETEEKTENE IR
HRAT FEMA -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% BERRHE
Electric Plant and Motor  Furniture and Leasehold  Right-of-use
Juipment hinery hicl Juipment  impr t assets Total
ENRE  BEREE RE  BERRE HENEEE  KAEEE ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTRL  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

Cost KA
At 1 January 2020 H-E-26-A-B 7159 24,839 329 4,047 41,400 439 82,170
Additions RE - - - 264 3,435 4,062 7751
Disposals e - - - - - (253) (253)
At 31 December 2020 and WZE-ZF+-A=+-HR
1 January 2021 “2--%-§-f 7159 24,839 329 431 44,835 8,195 89,668
Additions RE - 252 - - 2718 2,106 5,076
Disposals/terminations e/ R - (13,648) = = = (2,582) (16,230)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - (10 (158) (34) (202)
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--%+t-A=1+-H 7159 11,443 329 4,301 47395 7685 78312
Accumulated depreciation RHARERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2020 R-E-B5-A-B 3,361 3,662 304 1,076 5,250 1,161 14,814
Charge for the year FRGHE 2,230 2,683 7 806 9,359 2,368 17453
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR - - - - - (253) (253)
Impairment losses REBE - 675 - - - - 675
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZEFT-A=+-BR
1 January 2021 —2--%-5-F 5,591 7020 31 1,882 14,609 3276 32,689
Charge for the year FREHE 1,210 1,602 = 930 11,011 3,009 17762
Disposals/terminations HE /B - (4,457) - - - (1,563) 6,020)
Exchange realignment EX A% - - = 8) (73) (10) 91
Impairment losses HEEE - - - - - 2973 2,973
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--%+-A=1+-H 6,801 4,165 3N 2,804 25,547 7685 47313
Carrying amount EEE
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—£+-A=+-A 358 7278 18 1497 21,848 - 30,999
At 31 December 2020 A-Z-ZE+-A=+-F 1,568 17819 18 2,429 30,226 4919 56,979
The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable AEBE2EMHEMTE AN GERER
amounts of its property, plant and equipment as at BRARETHNENHE EFHER
31 December 2021 with reference to the valuation —EF-—FF+ZA=+—HBHHYE"
performed by an independent valuer, APAC Appraisal and B KRR A e S FE e T B
Consulting Limited. The recoverable amount is assessed BERAE=-QRATEFETHINESE
based on fair value less cost of disposal by using ERAE(FRAAERETAERE
depreciated replacement cost approach which involves ASE BEEENA (HEAFH
observable and unobservable inputs, including replacement FHRFAEE)RZRATFERLDEX
cost, estimated useful life and residual value, under level 3 AEF B - RREFERN  FAEAD
fair value measurement. During the two years, there were HESMITEES-

no change in the valuation techniques used.
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18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment (2020:
approximately RMB675,000) was recognised in the profit
or loss on the basis of material decline in the recoverable
amount and the expectation of challenging market
environment.

The Group has also carried out a review of the recoverable
amounts of its right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020
and 2021 and as result recognised impairment losses of
approximately RMB2,973,000 (2020: Nil). The recoverable
amounts of the right-of-use assets have been determined
on the basis of their value in use of the cash generating
unit (“CGU") using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted
gross margin and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate
have been reassessed as at 31 December 2021 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in
the current year due to how the COVID-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the
next five years with the residual period. The Company did
not consider any growth rate in the most recent financial
budgets.

HRETEREARAR | T —FFERE

18.

ME BERRE-E
REEE2-_ZEZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIt
FE ERAKREESBEHRENTRE
BESMBRBTRAES AU E
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JC) °
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AT U [B] & BB ETT AR AT - I BRIk RE RRORL
BEEH AREK2973,000 (=T =
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BB BRI L REETENIR KRR HE
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18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued 18. ¥M¥% BERRE &
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS ERAEEE
Motor  Office and
vehicles factory Property Total
BAER
pai:| &= L/ st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTI AR®TR
At 1 January 2020 R-_E-_FF—H—H - 3,156 79 3,235
Additions NE 1,830 2,222 - 4,052
Depreciation e (458) (1,860) (50) (2,368)
At 31 December 2020 and ~ WZZEZETF
1 January 2021 +=—A=+—8Xk
—E-—F—H—H 1,372 3,518 29 4,919
Additions NE - 2,106 - 2,106
Terminations Ak - (1,019) - (1,019)
Depreciation e (915) (2,065) (29) (3,009)
Exchange realignment b 5 R - (24) - (24)
Impairment losses BEEE (457) (2,516) - (2,973)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F
+=-A=+—H” - - - -
Lease liabilities of approximately RMB2,618,000 (2020: RZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 %RH
RMB4,431,000) are recognised with right-of-use assets EB8EHARK2618,000T (==
which was fully impaired as at 31 March 2021 (2020: TF: ARM4,431,00070) ERE &
RMB4,919,000). These lease agreements do not impose any HRENERAEEE(ZZE 24
covenants other than the security interests in the leased AR #4,919,00000) 2 EHEH=H
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not NHEIEM R - HEEAFENE
be used as security for borrowing purposes. EEETHMERESKRIIN-HEEE
TEEERRAERR-
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETx ARETTT
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use FRAEEENERX
assets 3,009 2,368
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAGEMBERAX
(included in finance costs) (FT A B RA) 186 215
Impairment losses BEEE 2,973 =

For both years, the Group leases motor vehicles, various
offices and warehouses for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 2 to 5 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

RREFE AEEHRERE &
MAERREHREE LA -HLOHR
B 7E 22255 - M & R TR [ 5l £ %
B BEs RN RGRR GRS R
28 7E 7H HA Ko w4k 1S AT 48 8 A R R B
AEBERSHANTEEREESHNT
%ﬂf"}/ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ °
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19. DEPOSITS PAID TO SUPPLIERS 19. XNFHEBZ2ES
2021 2020
—BZ—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Non-current asset EMEEE
Deposit for seafood business BEEBR 2 EE 4,922 1,479
Current assets MBEE
Deposit for fast moving consumer REBEBEMEBR  HES
business 2,857 3,370
Deposit for seafood business BEER 2 EE - 4,451
Total st 2,857 7,821
The balance represents the earnest money paid to the ERESN THERUKBREEE
suppliers for procurement of fast moving consumer mEZNTARMESRIEFRM
goods and fishermen for securing their long term supply BEEMHES N -_—F+=
of the marine raw materials amounting to approximately A=+—8%5318A5 AR%2,857000
RMB2,857,000 and RMB4,922,000 respectively as TR AR¥A922000 (==
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB3,370,000 and F: 95 AARYS,370,000C AR
RMB5,930,000 respectively). The deposits are unsecured, #5,930,0007T) - A iz & AEE R
interest-free and the balances are subject to repayment NGB MERBREHKIERER-
upon termination. During the year, impairment losses on RAFE INTHEF RS 2R
deposits paid to suppliers amounting to approximately BEBEHARYE1,976,000L (ZE =
RMB1,976,000 (2020: RMB17,000) was recognised. TE: ARK1700070) EWHER
20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20, & BENRERHMEKRIRE

RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT T AREEF T
Non-current asset kRBEE
Rental deposits Heke 468 477
Prepayments (note (iii)) TEA R (BT REGii) ) 3,500 3,500
3,968 3,977
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a related party JE W A B 5 B IE (B EE ()

(note (i) - 36
Amount due from a director (note (ii)) e E = 2E (MY EEi)) 2,536 2,389
VAT receivables FE I (B TR 536 536
Prepayments (note (iii)) TE AR (B REGii) ) 1,060 3,213
Other receivable Hh & YRR 5,340 218
Total @t 9,472 6,392
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20.

21.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20.

RECEIVABLES - continued

BRE FANFERHAMERKE-

F

Notes: B 5

(i) The balance represents a rental deposit paid to a company, which (i) FRRBAIN T RAEF (ENA
is controlled by the spouse of a director who is also the controlling ARARERRKRR)EBIEHMHAF 2HE
shareholder of the Company. The balance is unsecured, interest-free, SRE-ZEBRERT RS RREH
and repayable upon the end of lease term in December 2020. REZZZEF+ZAKRILEEE-

(ii) The balance represents amount due from a director who is also the (ii) FREBRAEER—2ES (ANTALAR
controlling shareholder of the Company. The balances are unsecured, AIERRARER ) 2RI - X BB
interest-free, and repayable on demand, and the maximum BRIZEREER FRAGaAEENRE
amount outstanding during the year was RMB2,536,000 (2020: BARM2536,000L (ZTE=_ZTF: A
RMB2,389,000). [ #2,389,0007T ) °

(iii) The non-current portion of the balance as at 31 December 2020 and (i) RZEZTFR=-ZZFT=-_—F+=A
2021 represents prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and =+ —BE&BOENBBL>BKRED
equipment. The current portion of the balance as at 31 December X HMELEZBENENR-R_Z=F
2020 and 2021 mainly represents prepayment of advertising and FR-ZZE-Z—F+-A=+—HEHK
promotion fees, for which the services will be provided subsequent MEF D EABNESEREEE
to the end of the reporting period. BRERBEARRE BREBIRE-

INVENTORIES 21. B®E

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEZFF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Raw materials R 1,217 2,796
Finished goods BIAX o 60,520 72,656
61,737 75,452

During the year, written-down of inventories amounting
to approximately RMB3,285,000 has been made in 2021
(2020: RMB2,105,000) and recognised in other expenses in
consolidated profit or loss.

HETEREARAR | T - —FFERE
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EBESEWFE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Trade receivables H 5 WG IE 144,846 138,062
Less: impairment losses R B R (29,223) (4,580)
115,623 133,482

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period granted to the customers generally
range from 180 to 270 days (2020: 30 to 120 days). The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are received regularly by the
directors.

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
Group's gross trade receivables are as follows:

AEBEHEFNBEZHIEREZEARE-
MELPREMNEEH KN T1802
2705(:2_7¢ 30%E1208) o A

BB EREERWEETR

T&T %‘J BREHRRESEHEM-

REZZAH NEBNE S EUKK

BHEBREOTOT

2021 2020

—B-—F —T-THF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET R ARET T

0 — 30 days 0£30H 6,328 20,677
31 - 60 days 31260H 5,703 24,847
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,311 18,747
91 - 120 days 91%2120H 4,456 11,515
121 — 365 days 1212365H 123,048 62,276
144,846 138,062

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables at the
end of reporting period, net of allowance for doubtful debts,

REEHR - NEEB 5 EURK

7 (40

BRRRBE)NEREENTIIE G

are denominated in the following currencies: & :
2021 2020
—2--F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETFT
HK$ AT - 116
RMB AR 115,618 124,787
UsD ETT 5 8,579
115,623 133,482
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23.

24.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances
of the Group are denominated in the following currencies:

23. HBITRREEH

RBERAR NEENRTRRE &S

BRI T ERFHE:

2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi —_=ZF= E'E

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

HK$ BT 342 345
UsD ETT = 3,907
RMB AR 176,060 209,227
176,402 213,479

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations. However, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

1A RIS 538 R 50 8 5 B SN E
ERIGHIMGE SERNEEER
TE o PR - AR P B OME B I R 1) AR
SHEEERBERERRINEXHH
RITHARBHBAEMER -

24. EFZENRE

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end RMERAR BREZFAHAENERE
of reporting period, based on the invoice date is as follows: BESENZHENERRITAOT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR¥TT
0 — 30 days 0£30H 2,482 11,060
31 - 60 days 31£260H - 5,293
2,482 16,353

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables at the
end of reporting period are denominated in the following
currencies:

RB|ERAR NEEE JEN KA

FREENA T IIEEEE:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZFF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R AREF T

Usb ETT = 8,910
RMB AR 2,482 7443
2,482 16,353
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25.

26.

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER

25. EER BUWRSRHMES

PAYABLES ;g
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Accruals and other payables FEET & A K& H A FE T FRIB 4,779 4,231
Deposit received Bz e 9,817 849
Other tax payables H b fE A B IE 148 64
Salaries payables BN ITE 2,114 4,268
Payable for acquisition of property, BEME. lﬁ]ﬁ}%&?&ﬁﬂ’\]
plant and equipment B 5RIE - 3,550
Amount due to a related company — JE A~ F@L FRIB—
(note) ( Kﬁ}) 404 2,505
Total st 17,262 15,467
Note: B 3 -

The balance represents amount due to a related company, which is
controlled by Mr. Li Dongfan. Mr. Li is the non-executive director of the
Group. The balance is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand,
and the maximum amount outstanding during the year was approximately
RMB2,505,000.

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 13
debentures with an aggregate principal of approximately
RMB20,448,000 (2020: RMB13,070,000). The debentures
are unsecured, bearing interest rates at a range of 0.1% -
10% (2020: 0.1% — 10%) per annum, and repayable during
the period from January 2022 to January 2028 (2020:
January 2021 to January 2028). The maturity profile of the
carrying amount of the bonds is analysed as follows:

HEHRAEMNBEATNRE ZARBEFTRALL
RS FEERANEEENTES HHARE
HiF B RIZBKEERE FAKRAEERE
#5 AR #2,505,0007T

26. &%
RZBE-_—F+_A=+—H AR
RIBITIMES ASRBHARE
20448000%(:$:T¢ AR
13,070,00070) *Z EEH AEEIT
?ﬁiﬂ%f?%ﬂ%im%(:z:
TE:01%E10%):FEL AR -F
::¢ H:I:—?—[\EE H(—
—EF: - —F—RAEZT-N
F—R)HBEE ZSEFNEEE
RE BRSO T

2021 2020
:g: - $ —_=zF= E'E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREEF T
Within one year —F A 6,213 6,287
In the second year FF - -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive % —EFERF (BREERMTE) 8,266 -
After five years hE% 6,724 6,959
21,203 13,246

Represented by Exdp=
Current portion BREAEL 7> 6,213 6,287
Non-current portion JEBNHEA L 9 14,990 6,959
21,203 13,246

FEABEEERAR | — S —FFEHRS
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27 HEA®E
Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
BREHEMSRK REREESREE
2021 2020 2021 2020

—E--F Z—E-%FF CZEZ-F ZET-EFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETR

Within one year —FR 1,896 3,114 1,805 2,916
In the second to fifth years, F_FEFRF
inclusive (BEERERMTF) 883 2,039 813 1,515
2,779 5,163 2,618 4,431
Less: Future finance charges W RRBER Y (161) (722) i@ M T iE A
Present value of lease obligations &% %KM (E 2,618 4,431 2,618 4,431
Less: Amount due for settlement 5 : 1218 B A B H
within 12 months (shown BEMNSE (AR
under current liabilities) BAEETIR) (1,805) (2,916)
Amount due for settlement after #1218 B & B HEE R
12 months T 813 1,615
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities at the RBERR AEENHEHEAERR
end of reporting period are denominated in the following BT E®,EE:
currencies:
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREF T
HK$ BT 1,489 1,506
RMB AR 1,129 2,925
2,618 4,431
The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease HRAREESENFHEESEERNE
liabilities is 5% (2020: 5%). B5% (T -_ZTF:5%)
FRASERBRAR| = —FEERE
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28.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 28. EBEEHREEE
Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and EAMNTFERRACEERBEER
movements during the current and prior year are as follows: HEg o HENT:
Depreciation
on right-of-
use asset  Impairment  Impairment
and interest losses on losses on
on lease trade deposit paid
liabilities receivables  to suppliers Total
EREEE X FHES
ZHEREE EZEWRE ZEE
BEZRE ZREFE ZHEFR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%TR ARBTRT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-T5—-H—-H (13) 321 64 372
(Charged)/credited to profitor (B B) FHAFERER
loss for the year (3) 357 5 359
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZEE+ZA=+—-HR
1 January 2021 —T-—-%—F—H (16) 678 69 731
(Charged)/credited to profitor (B B) FAFERER
loss for the year 16 (678) (69) (731)

31 December 2021

“E-—F+-A=+—H -

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB70,128,000 (2020: RMB29,256,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
RMB58,320,000 (2020: RMB22,668,000) that will expire
in five years. Other tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

RBERR AEBEEXRHAKE
E 18 AR #70,128,000T (ZE -
F: AR¥29,256,0007T) 7] AR IK
SR T m A o R R R AR AR
RN WERRELEHRBEEE: 3t
AXERREEBEEINEBEEARE
58,320,000t (ZE T F: AR
22,668,0007T) R AF A EIH - Eth
FRIBE B ERH LS -
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29.

SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
R & E S8 R 8B Ex
Note ‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
Bt 3 TR AR®Tx T AREFT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January w—HA—H 1,000,000 87,412 10,000,000 87412
Share consolidation W1 & (i) - - (9,000,000) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 1,000,000 87412 1,000,000 87412
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TE
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
R EE -] Rih 8B i
Note ‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
Bt 3 T AR¥®TrR T AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BERITRAR:
At 1 January n—HA—H 100,000 8,723 1,000,000 8,723
Share consolidation B1n & b (i) - - (900,000) -
Subscription of new shares 1R — R ZEAHE (ii)
under general mandate D 8,000 665 = =
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 108,000 9,388 100,000 8,723
Note: Bt & -

(i)

(ii)

On 25 May 2020, the share consolidation resolution has been passed
by the Company'’s shareholders in the AGM. On 26 May 2020, every
ten issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company. The authorised
share capital of the Company became HK$100,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.10 each, of
which 100,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.10 each
was in issue.

On 5 November 2021, the Company and the subscriber entered
into a subscription agreement under which the Company agreed
to issue and allot and the subscriber agreed to subscribe,
8,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$1.5
per subscription share. The subscription was completed on
17 November 2021. The net proceeds from the subscription, after
deduction of share issue expenses of approximately HK$0.4 million,
are approximately HK$11.6 million. Details of the subscription were
disclosed in announcements of the Company dated 5 November
2021 and 18 November 2021.

HETEREARAR | T - —FFERE

(i)

(ii)
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A BATE B AN A £100,000,0007 70+ 9
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BT -REEEECR_Z-_—%5+—58
+tARK - REEEMBRBFELN
11,600,000 ¢ (N HDEITE B
#7400,0008 L1%) - REBEHZFI1EE
RARF A AE-_T-_—F+—HAAA
EZFE=Z—F+—-A+/\BHRAEAK

==

B ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHBHERIN UAREHIR)

29.

SHARE CAPITAL - continued

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the
Group is that to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives a report from the share registrars weekly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit from the date of the Listing. As of 31 December 2021,
51.39% (2020: 47.5%) of the shares were in public hands.

HRETEREARAR | T —FFERE

29.

R — &
AEBEREANBRAREAEE
FEKLENRE N EBELER KK
R A5 R T 2 R AR SRR K B 3t AN
BHEARBERRRERMNMAA
FXTE -

AEEFBEBEAKANETEE
AHEENRRBMEETEEEARLEHF-
AEEBEBBRRNKE  BFEITHR
EEROHBRNARETHES BLEIR
BEREBEIHEEEURIEFE R
A FEEHEBEERERAEB - REE-Z
——FRZE_FEF+_A=+—H
FTFE - EATEMNBEZ BHELR
EREELEE-

W—INERBIEERERALRER
BB BBEELV2% AR E NG
SEHRBRAM LM - KEEF
BEDBRMNDBPLPEREZHYIRIE
NEFHBREMNERBRMDESRHRE

FB%MRE-HE_T—_—F+=
A=+—H5139% (ZE T F:
475% VIR B ABALTES -
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Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 17 June 2022.

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30, AR ERRERRRBEEESD
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (A) VNN B8 S
COMPANY
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEZEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RKIEE 347 347
Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 1,874 =
Rental deposits Heke 318 =
2,539 347
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment and other receivables — FE{f Z 18 [ H b i Y 3k 18 3,285 481
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 104,897 116,809
Amount due from a director JEWZE =708 599 1,252
Bank and cash balances RITEREE 8 329 186
109,110 118,728
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals, deposits received and EstER CWiRE &
other payables H th JE S 30IE 5,139 4,422
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERT B R R RIE 9,571 9,428
Debentures &% 6,213 6,287
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,040 =
21,963 20,137
Net current assets FERBEE 87,147 98,591
Total assets less current HWEERARBARG
liabilities 89,686 98,938
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Debentures BE% 14,990 6,959
Lease liabilities HEBRE 449 =
15,439 6,959
Net assets REE 74,247 91,979
Equity % RE
Share capital fi% A< 9,388 8,723
Reserves (G 64,859 83,256
Total equity e RE 74,247 91,979

R-BE-_—_FXAt++HES
Ee b RIRETIE-

Li Dongfan Liu Junting
FRA ZBE
Director Director
EFE o
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 300 AT BERRERFEEES -
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY - Fi]
continued
(B) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (B) ZEARREEZD
Foreign
currency
Share translation Retained
premium reserve profits Total
ROEE HNEFERE REBF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARBTr ARETn
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_EF—F—H 138,185 2,907 (45,493) 95,599
Loss and total comprehensive FAEERZEBALE
income and changes in LEmE 8
equity for the year - (4,768) (7575) (12,343)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZT
1 January 2021 =+-H —f
—HA—H 138,185 (1,861) (53,068) 83,256
Subscription of new shares  RE—MREEREH KRN
under general mandate 9,311 - - 9,311
Share issue expenses RHETER (300) - - (300)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZEM AL
income and changes in LERED
equity for the year - (3,355) (24,053) (27,408)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=
=+—H 147,196 (5,216) (77121) 64,859
31. RESERVES 31. f#E
(A) GROUP (A) ZF£HE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements K& lfﬁfﬁﬁ’]%%ﬁ)}ﬁqﬂ k=i
therein are presented in the consolidated statement PhmeEa RAMEEKE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and ERIGEHEREHRANZEY -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (B) REHMMHEERRE
(i) Share premium (i) B 5w E
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman BEREHE QA
Islands, the funds in the share premium ARaRDREENE
account of the Company are distributable to A DK T AR AR
the shareholders of the Company provided HOEBEEESZ SRR
that immediately following the date on which EER®B AREIEAR
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the ﬁzjﬂ‘f/ﬁ HE XA
Company will be in a position to pay off its e ‘JE?@E’JTE?I’“
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
Share premium represents premium arising BaEREULSRTR
from the issue of shares at a price in excess R EEMERETR
of their par value per share and after deduction MAEENRE LB
of capitalisation issue and issuance costs of KR E AR BETRE
shares. MDEITEH AR -
hEFEEEERAT | o EEERE
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31.

RESERVES - continued
NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES -
continued

(B)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Special reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
a director who is also a shareholder of the
Company, has waived the repayment of
amounts owed to the director which amounted
to RMB17,800,000 from its outstanding
balance. It was deemed as contribution to the
Company and has been capitalised to special
reserve.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law
and the Group's PRC subsidiaries’ articles of
association, the Group's PRC subsidiaries are
required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax
as determined in accordance with the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory
reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The appropriation to the
reserve must be made before any distribution
of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous
years' losses, if any, and part of the statutory
surplus reserve can be capitalised as paid-
in capital provided that the amount of such
reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall
not be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of
the Group's subsidiaries.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(B)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

31.

HE— &
RENMHERRE &

(B)

HREMEEEERAT | B —FFEHRE
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

1ZRIEE
Hz_ZT-—NmNE+ =
A=+—HIEFE K
ABARNRRRZESHR
HEXEELEHPRER
B A R #17800,0007T
MERESNRIERNE
ReZemEEBDAR
RIETEWE WEIBE
R BIEE AR -

FEERE
BEPBERTERKNE
ErREMEARMNER
A NEE B
BARIAKERBRERNE
BARMMEREZTR
AR BREMETHN
10% % & 7 B 8 AK€
HE EE2ZETHE
EHFEMEA0% °
HHEBRVEERER
#HAH ADERE 28
T AEBGBREETR
NI BT EENEE
(mE) M EEHA
HFEBUERLAEER
AR HEE AR T &
MNZERENSETE
DR AEBWEBRRH
BINEAM25% ©

ST E

SNEE I B S B R R R
BB EBEH G RE M
ELEMMAELZ®E-
ERRESHERE
Bt 5E4(B) (iii) P & B0 & &
KR BEIE -
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31.

32.

33.

RESERVES - continued 31.
(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES -
continued

(v) Other reserve

On 27 April 2016, New Lead Worldwide Limited
("New Lead”) acquired 100% equity interest
in Xiamen Wofan Foodstuff Company Limited
(“Xiamen Wofan"”) from their shareholders at
an aggregate consideration of US$892,307
(equivalent to RMB5,800,000) which was
based on the registered capital of Xiamen
Wofan. New Lead settled such consideration
by cash, which was advanced by of the
Company. The amounts due to shareholders
is included in accruals, deposits received and
other payables as at 31 December 2016 with
the corresponding amount recognised as
deemed distribution to shareholders.

After the acquisition of Xiamen Wofan, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group thereafter. The amount transferred to
other reserve represents the nominal value of
the share capital of Xiamen Wofan.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32.
Capital expenditure contracted at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

HE— &
(B) REHMERRE-&

(v) Eftt#EeE
RZZE—RF

(EFRE])HBRERK
BEMREZNEIHR/RAE
% 8 R{E /B892,307
ERT(BHERARK
5,800,0007T) ' Jh 1R #&
EPFTREMEMME A
o ELAARR T B
MRS EFHBERE-
JENBERER-Z
—"NE+ZA=+—H
FFAERGER -2 WL
& R HE A FES FRIE A8
BeERRARIERR
DK °

RUEBEPIRE®R K
RAEEBK B AEED
ERAR - EREEM
FEEOZEBEREM
ARERIAEIE

& AR
RERBTHIB N REE 2 EABX
W

2021 2020

—E-—fF ZEZEF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Property, plant and equipment e 3,450 3,450
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HAEE

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the end
of the reporting period (2020: Nil).

HRETEREARAR | T —FFERE

RBERR AEEHBTATHLAR
B(ZF_FF:F)-
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34. SUBSIDIARIES 34.
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

Bt X F]

TREIHAEEXRE EEXAE
BEAFYENNBRARHE KRH
RSN PR R B AR

Place of incorporation
and operation

Principal activities

Name of subsidiary Issue share capital % of ownership interest  and place of operation

HEARER TR L R A it B ERITRA %HEEES TEEBREE Y
2021 2020
—E--% —E-ZE
Xiamen Wofan Foodstuff Company The People’s Republic of ~ RMB91,066,872 Indirectly Indirectly Packaging and sale of

Limited 2 China 100% 100%  seafood products

ERAERMERAR hEARLAE AR #91,066,8727C BERE MERE BERHEEBEM
100% 100%
Fujian Wofan Foodstuff Company The People’s Republic of ~ RMB10,000,000 Indirectly Indirectly Packaging and sale of

Limited ' China 100% 100% seafood products

BREAGRMERAR? REARLANE AR#10,000,0007T MiEsE MESE BERHEERER
100% 100%

Hanzhong Trading Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD1,000,000 Indirectly Indirectly Procurement and sales of
100% 100% fast moving consumer

products

BREHERAR Et 1,000,000/ 70 MiEsE MERE REEERNRERES
100% 100%

Note 1: These companies are registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises PHEET . ZEQAREREBEREEZEMAINGE

under the law of PRC. B
Note 2: These companies are limited liability companies in the PRC. &2 : ZERARARPBRNERETAR
As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances RZE-Z—F+=-_RA=+—8"

of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated REBRABEZHBRARANARKE
in RMB amounted to approximately RMB176,036,000 FENERTRAESERABNARE

(2020: RMB209,225,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign 176,036, 000m<_§_§¢:)\ﬁﬁﬁ¥

currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However,
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

HETEREARRAR | =

209,225,0007T ) ° #& A R & 5 # 5 5
BARBERBEZ OMNEEHHEH) &
(HEIE - -SENMNEZTIRET) #17°
A RIBER Rz CONEE BB
B (HETE ’iE&HEMEﬁE> ViN
EEMBRRIERETE B HERE
Lﬂ%%%ﬁZﬁﬁ%AE%Rﬁﬁ
EMEk-

—FERERE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35, BAEFIRXS
(A) Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial (A) KRZSHEBRRZEHRES

(B)

statements, during the year, the Group entered into
the following transactions with related parties.

ShoRER - FEEEBES
AYUTRS-

2021 2020
g —E_FF
Name of related party Type of transaction RMB’'000 RMB'000
BB ER BTE R 5 A AR TR AR¥TT
Xiamen Yehong Foodstuffs Rental expenses
Company Limited (note i) 200 200
EREARRER AT (KEF) HERX
Mr. Liu Rongjian (note ii) Cost of sales 97 576
B A& (MIEEi) $HE KA
Mr. Liu Rongzhong (note iii) Cost of sales 53 644
2188 B 5 A (B REii) 3 & AR
Notes: B & -
(i) A Company which is controlled by the spouse of the major (i) —BBEFERR (TRAESF)Z
shareholder who is also a director. [IRR Rt = o NCTRS
(ii) Mr. Liu Rongjian is the cousin of Mr. Liu Rongru. (i) R EERBEMAEENE
e
(iii) Mr. Liu Rongzhong is the cousin of Mr. Liu Rongru. (iii) BIEREEARBEMEENE
LB
REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (B) FTEEBEASEMH
PERSONNEL EENAFEHFHMEINNAT

The remuneration of directors for the year are set out
below:

2021 2020

—E-—fF ZEZEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTR AREFIT

Short-term benefits EHEIRF 5,207 3,861
Contribution to retirement RIKEFIFHEIH R

benefit scheme 42 39

Total ®E 5,249 3,900
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. mEBHERERMT

CASH FLOWS
(A) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM (A) RETHEENEGEZHRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the TRHFLAEERETHEE
Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, MNEBENES 2FHESMIE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities Re2y MEGTHMELE
arising from financing activities are those for which BEAREMELRIARKIRE
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, MEBKRAEBGERERE
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of KA BEARMEGEDRESRE
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. MEE-
Debentures Lease liabilities Total
&% HEEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETR ARET T
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_TF—A—H 900 3,228 4,128
Cash flow Reneg 12,580 (2,104) 10,476
Interest expenses FERAZ 229 215 444
New lease arrangement nHERH - 3,092 3,092
Exchange differences ERES (463) . (463)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZZTF+-A=+—H
1 January 2021 k—E-_—%—f—H 13,246 4,431 17,677
Cash flow Reng 7,202 (3,034) 4,168
Interest expenses FERZ 1,372 186 1,558
New lease arrangement FHEERH - 2,106 2,106
Termination of lease arrangements |- &% - (1,047) (1,047)
Exchange differences EHESE (617) (24) (641)
At 31 December 2021 RZZB--%¥+-A=+-H 21,203 2,618 23,821
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. MEBREREBRWIT &

CASH FLOWS - continued
(B) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES (B)
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for

HERSRHARE
BREEREZRERANEES

lease comprise the following: HEENTEE:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF ARBEFIT
Within operating cash flows KERESREN 186 215
Within financing cash flows BMEREREA 2,848 1,889
3,034 2,104

These amounts relate to the following:

BELATIABE AR

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTT
Lease rental paid EfNAe 3,034 2,104
37. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. HREHBEAREBNRE
(A) OUTBREAK OF COVID-19 (A) COVID-194%& %

Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("“COVID-19"), the prevention and control of the
COVID-19 has been going on throughout the country.
The COVID-19 has certain impacts on the business
operation and customer demand for the Group's
products has further declined, which will directly
affect the Group's turnover and performance. Up to
the date of the report, the financial effect cannot be
estimate. The Group will keep continuous attention
on the situation of the COVID-19, assess and react
actively to its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.
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37.

38.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD - 37 BREHEEREE-F
continued
(B) FORMATION OF A JOINT VENTURE COMPANY (B) BIEGERAT

On 16 March 2022, the Company and CS Business
Solutions Limited entered into an agreement
("Agreement”) in relation to the formation of the JV
Company in the Hong Kong to be engaged in the
operation of B2B trading platform of high-demand
mobile phones and electronic components and B2B
supply chain financing business. The JV Company will
be owned as to 55% by the Company and 45%by
CS Business Solutions Limited. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the capital of the JV Company will be
contributed as to HK$5,500,000 by the Company and
HK$4,500,000 by CS Business Solutions Limited. CS
Business Solutions Limited is ultimately owned as
to 99.98% and 0.02% equity interest by Lau Shek
Yau and Lau Ying Cynthia respectively. Lau Shek Yau
is interested in 8,000,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 7.41% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Details of the above are set out in the Company's
announcements and circulars dated 16 March 2022
and 22 March 2022 respectively.

(C) SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER (C)

GENERAL MANDATE

On 28 March 2022, the Company and the subscriber
entered into a subscription agreement under
which the Company agreed to issue and allot and
the subscriber agreed to subscribe, 12,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$1.5 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 14 April 2022. The net proceeds
from the subscription, after deduction of share
issue expenses of approximately HK$0.6 million, are
approximately HK$17.4 million.

Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 28 March
2022, 14 April 2022 and 19 April 2022.

RZE-_—_F=ZA+B 'K
‘A7 & CS Business Solutions
Limiteds] 3 & ([ 3% W
Z)OREBB WL =W/ANGIN
TREBEESTRFHREK
ETFEMB2BE S5 F 468 &
BBHEESRMELK -EERQ
Al #% B AN A 7] & CS Business
Solutions Limited® Rl &
55%K45% - RIBEZ WE - A
A&l H & 5,500,000 7T - CS
Business Solutions Limited
# H &4,500,0008 T CS
Business Solutions Limitedi
BEHERIBD A EREES
99.98% }0.02% 2 B # - B A
1H ¥ A58,000,0000% & A & K&
MHER AN EETR
ABFEHITATI % o

J:L.:? IE’“/DJU%XE’\ZIKA A A

R —RRERBEH KRG

RZEBE-_—_F=A=_+N\8"
$/_\j/\uug%}\n—[iubﬁ%ﬁ;}
HZ BN ARRRERETR
iEmMREBAREEZRE D
BATHNBEREEE AR
E%FlHquﬁﬁﬂXfﬁ'] 5/%71::%
812,000,000 BB D - R
Eﬁaﬂfz::imﬂ—km
AEM REFABRENA
17,400,000/ Ju (4 0Bk B% 0
2178 FH 4600,0008 018 ) °

REBEHEFBHEERAQFA
%E*Tzzi_ﬂ*+AE
“TE-_FNAtTIHB R

—ZHEmOATNABNAE.
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. HWAEMBHE
The consolidated financial statements were approved and e RERREEEN 2=
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 June SNATEBBE R
2022.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFENBERE
A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the AEBZOTABEABKFE XEREE B
Group for the last five financial years is depicted below: ERERENROT :
RESULTS E
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZB--% C_T-RFf BN BN C_E—+t%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRH
Revenue WA 86,506 162,718 472,888 667958 644,407
Cost of sales HEMA (76,587) (132,002) (369,119) (498,864 (480,901)
Gross profit £ 9,919 30,716 103,769 169,094 163,506
Other income and other gains/(losses) HAR
Az (B1B) (3.483) 1,100 1,272 2,363 195
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (31,380) (35,878) (43,734) (54,575) (23,806)
Administrative expenses THER (35,750) (19,167) (14,098) (11,553) (34,912)
Expected credit losses on financial assets & REEMBHEEER (27,158) (3,309) (261) (72) S
Other expenses EtER (1,558) (444) (693) (842) (598)
Finance costs REMA (6,911) (3,358 (226) - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATEHA (BR) RA (96,321) (30,340) 46,029 104,415 104,385
Income tax expense FiEHRAX (1,347) (1,915) (15,189) (28,001) (34,183)
(Loss)/profit for the year £R (FE) /&5 (97,668) (32,255) 30,840 76,414 70,202
Other comprehensive income FERHEMEZERA
for the year, net of tax: MERHE:
Items that may be classified subsequently E# &7 EZE
to profit or loss: BmntyBEf -
- Exchange differences arising from -REBNEBEER
translation of foreign operations EHES 567 841 (13) 547 (1,719)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2E
for the year (BB /WA&E (97,101) (31,414) 30,827 76,961 68,483
(Lossesl/earnings per share gk (BR) /&
- basic and diluted (RMB) -EAREE (ARY) (0.9649) (0.3226) 0.3080 0.7640 0.8120
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE - BERER
As at 31 December
M+=B=+-AH
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZB--% C"T-RFf TN E-N§ C_E—+t%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Total Assets BESH 405,980 499,792 508,844 503,103 444,958
Total Liabilities AERE (46,988) (53,375) (31,013) (56,099) (73,981)
Total Equity BEnes 358,992 446,417 477831 447004 370,977
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